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Corporate Information

NI

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong*4
(re-designated as Chairman on 25 May 2011)
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree
Mr. Lam Yick Sing
Mr. Wen Louis
Mr. Zhuang You Dao

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun*#

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora*#~
Mr. Pak William Eui Won*#4

* Member of Audit Committee
# Member of Remuneration Committee
& Member of Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee was established on 16 March 2012
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Mr. Chui Kark Ming

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
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Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands,
British West Indies.
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Room 1103, 11/F., China United Centre,
28 Marble Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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Hong Kong.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREEERER 7 M

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's audited consolidated net loss for the year was
HK$329.31 million (2010: net loss of HK$229.46 million). The net
asset value of the Group increased from HK$890.25 million as at
31 December 2010 to HK$954.84 million as at 31 December 2011.
The net loss is mainly attributed to the loss from securities trading.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Tianjin Motor Business

The Company through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Crown
Creation Limited, acquired 50% of the equity interest in K&
Yl REHEE AR AR (Tianjin Kai Sheng Automobile Service
Co., Ltd.) (“Tianjin Kai Sheng"”) since October 2007. Tianjin Kai
Sheng and its subsidiaries engaged in the business of selling and
distribution of Nissan motor vehicles, operation of the Nissan 4S
shops, provision of heavy motor vehicle repair and maintenance
services in the PRC.

On 21 September 2011, the Group disposed of its entire interest
in Tianjin Kai Sheng through the disposal of Crown Creation
Limited. Details of the disposal are set out in note 19 to the
financial statements. For the financial year, Tianjin Motor Business
contributed a profit of HK$1.07 million to the Group up to the
date of disposal.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
FTEHREUREEERLAR N

Logistic Services

The Group through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
invests 40% issued share capital of Golden Fame International
Investments Group Limited ("GFIIGL") since 13 September 2007.
The Company’s interest in GFIIGL was treated as an interest in
associates. GFIIGL provides various logistic services in Hong Kong
and the PRC including third party logistics, freight forwarding,
airline general sales agency, supply chain management, river trade
shipping and terminal stevedoring. During the year, the overall
performance of GFIGL remain stable despite a weak economic
recovery in North America, the fragile economic conditions in
Europe, leading to stubbornly low international trade and cargo
volume. The high fuel price also affected the performance of
GFIIGL. A loss of approximately HK$0.76 million was shared by the
Group. Subject to the market trends and conditions, it is expected
that the result of GFIIGL for the first half of 2012 will be stable.

As disclosed in the Company's annual report 2010 and interim
report 2011, GFIGL and its subsidiaries intended to list on the
growth enterprise market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
("GEM").

Reference is also made to the Company’s announcement dated
15 November 2011 that GFIIGL and its subsidiaries informed the
Company that its application for listing on GEM postponed and it
is expected that the application will be made in or around the first
quarter of 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREEERER 7 M

Forestry Business

On 26 April 2010, the Company’s indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, Regent Square Limited, completed its acquisition of
Richful Zone International Limited at a consideration of HK$79.2
million. The consideration was satisfied by an issue of 330,000,000
shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$0.24 per share to
Mascotte Holdings Limited. Richful Zone International Limited and
its subsidiary hold 50% of the interests in the concession rights
and forestry contracts in respect of three pieces of forest lands
located in Simao District, Puer City, Yunnan Province, the PRC,
with a total site area of approximately 36,735 Chinese Mu. The
concession rights and interest in the forest lands are expiring on
January 2060. Since acquisition, the operation of the forest lands
made no contribution to the Group after payment of management
fee to the PRC's partner according to the concession contract
dated 18 June 2007. In view of the current condition of the forest
lands and market environments, it is expected that the operation
of the forest lands will have profits contribution and appreciation
in forest lands value, to the Group in the medium to long term
spectrum. As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of the forestry
rights attributable to the Group is stated at approximately HK$67.5
million.

Investment in a Limited Partnership

On 17 August 2010, the Company's indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Pan Fortune Investments Limited entered into
an investors’ subscription agreement to invest a total of
US$10,000,000 into a co-investment vehicle, a limited partnership,
established for the purpose of acquiring control of the equity
securities and loan receivables of an investee group which is
a supplier of automotive components, supplying both original
equipment manufacturers and the aftermarket. The investment
was approved by independent shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 27 September 2010. In April
2011, the Group completed its investment by payment of the
remaining investment balance of approximately HK$17.28 million
(US$2,222,222.22). The investment represents 22.2% holdings
on the limited partnership. The limited partnership is managed by
AITS Cayman Limited which is an affiliate of Unitas Capital Pte
Ltd (“Unitas”). Unitas is one of the pioneers in large leveraged
buyout transactions in Asia. Since inception in 1999, funds advised
by Unitas have invested in excess of US$2.3 billion in equity
capital in 28 transactions across a broad range of industries and
geographies. The Company plays a passive role on the investment
and to keep the investment as available-for-sale financial assets.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
FTEHREUAREEERALAR N

On 21 September 2011, the Group disposed of its entire interest
in the limited partnership through the disposal of Crown Creation
Limited. Details of the disposal are set out in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Trading of Securities

The Group invested its surplus cash in Hong Kong's listed securities
and unlisted securities as short-term investments. During the year,
the European sovereign debt crisis, high unemployment rate in the
United States and tighten monetary policy in China attributable
to the volatility of the Hong Kong stock market. As a result, the
Group recorded realised losses of approximately HK$97.88 million
from the disposal of certain securities and an unrealised loss of
approximately HK$346.73 million on the portfolio.

Money Lending Business

The Group has used part of its surplus cash through its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary, Forefront Finance Co., Limited to provide
short-term loans to various borrowers. Those short-term loans
normally carried interest rates of 2% per annum to 1% per month
during the year. Within the financial year, the money lending
business contributed HK$11.52 million interest income to the
Group. After the year-end date, a borrower defaulted his loan
repayment together with the outstanding interests. The Group is
taking legal action against the borrower to recover the outstanding
loan, a provision against the defaulted principal and accrued
interests amounting to HK$19.26 million has been made in the
financial statements for the year 2011.

During the year under review, a provision for bad and doubtful
debts of HK$89.40 million was written back due to repayment
loans by borrowers.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREEERER 7 M

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 21 September 2011, the Company’s indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, Loyal Fine Limited entered into the share purchase
agreement to sell the entire issued share capital of Crown Creation
Limited at the Consideration of HK$100 million. Crown Creation
Group held various investments which engaged in (i) the business
of selling and distribution of Nissan motor vehicles, operation
of the Nissan 4S shops, provision of heavy motor vehicle repair
and maintenance services in the PRC (Tianjin Motor Business); (ii)
manufacturing of carbon fiber in the PRC (Carbon Fiber Project was
fully impaired in the Year 2009); (iii) development, management
and operation of an e-ticketing system for railway passengers and
related railway freight cargo services in the PRC (Investment in
e-ticketing system in the PRC was fully impaired in the Year 2007);
and (iv) co-investment in automotive components manufacturing
(Investment in a Limited Partnership). The disposal contributed a
gain of HK$17.66 million to the Group's results for the year ended
31 December 2011. Details of the disposal are set out in note 19
to the financial statements.

PROSPECT

On 20 January 2012, Sino Wealthy Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the note purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Quinella International
Incorporated had conditionally agreed to sell and Sino Wealthy
Limited had conditionally agreed to purchase the 2.5% unsecured
bonds due 2014 in the aggregate principal amount of HK$300
million issued by Mascotte Holdings Limited (Stock code: 136)
at a total consideration of HK$265 million. The acquisition was
approved by the Shareholders at extraordinary general meeting of
the Company on 2 March 2012. The notes offers an interest rate
of 2.5% per annum on the outstanding principal amount, payable
quarterly which provides stable interest income for the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Company will continuously identify

suitable investment opportunity and seeking acquisition of new
business and assets where suitable opportunity arise.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
FTEHREUREEERLAR N

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, Financial Resources, Borrowing and Gearing Ratio

The Group financed its operation largely through internal cash
resources and fund raising activities (issuance of rights shares). As
at the end of reporting period, the cash balance was maintained
at approximately HK$138.18 million (2070: HK$131.34 million).
The Group's gearing ratio, calculated as total borrowings divided
by net assets, is stated at 0% (2070: 0%) since the Group had
no outstanding borrowing as at 31 December 2011 (as at 37
December 2010: HK$ Nil). As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s
net assets value amounted to approximately HK$954.84 million
(as at 31 December 2010: HK$890.25 million) with total assets
approximately HK$958.24 million (as at 31 December 2010:
HK$920.07 million). Net current assets were approximately
HK$746.94 million (as at 31 December 2010: HK$723.84 million)
and the current ratio was 220.49 times (as at 31 December 2010:
25.27 times).

Capital Structure

On 10 February 2011, the Company repurchased a total of 3
shares of its listed shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
the purpose of reducing fraction share in the share consolidation
of which carried out by the Company on 7 March 2011.

On 25 November 2010, the Company proposed that consolidation
of every ten issued shares of par value of HK$0.1 each into one
consolidated share of par value of HK$1.00 each then a reduction
in nominal value of all the issued consolidated shares from par
value of HK$1.00 each to par value of HK$0.01 each by the
cancellation of the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.99 on
each consolidated share and the share subdivision of each of the
authorised but unissued share at par value of HK$0.10 each into
ten shares of par value at HK$0.01 each. The capital reorganisation
was approved by shareholders at the EGM of the Company held
on 10 January 2011 and approved by the Grand Court of Cayman
Islands on 7 March 2011.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREEERER 7 M

On 25 November 2010, the Company proposed a Rights Issue of
not less than 3,248,660,184 and not more than 4,100,897,984
rights shares to the qualifying shareholders at a price of HK$0.125
per rights share on the basis of eight rights shares for every share
in issue and held on record date (i.e. 31 March 2011). On 28
April 2011, the Rights Issue was completed. The Company’s share
capital increased from 406,082,523 shares to 3,654,742,707
shares. The Company received a net proceeds of approximately
HK$393.90 million from the Rights Issue.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is not subject to material foreign currency exposure
since its operations are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
As such, no hedging instrument is considered necessary by the
Board during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2011, margin facilities from regulated securities
brokers were granted to the Group which was secured by the
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. As at
31 December 2011, the Group has not utilised (as at 37 December
2010: HK$Nil) these facilities.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 22 employees including
directors of the Company. The policy of employee remuneration,
bonus, share option scheme and training are commensurate with
performance, experience and comparable to the market rate. The
Group contributes to a Mandatory Provident Fund under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2010: HK$5,800,000).

Yeung Ming Kwong
Chairman

Hong Kong

16 March 2012
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong, aged 53, joined the Company on 26
April 2007. Mr. Yeung is the Chairman of the Company, formerly
an executive director and CEO of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited,
(stock code: 1215; formerly known as Wah Lee Resources Holdings
Limited) and an executive director of Goldwiz Holdings Limited
(delisted on 8 September 2008, stock code: 586). He has over 20
years of experience in import and export trading and investment
business in the PRC. Mr. Yeung was re-designated as Chairman of
the Group on 25 May 2011 and also holds directorship in major
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree, aged 43, joined the Company on 26
April 2007. She holds an EMBA from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business and a Bachelor's Degree of Arts from York
University, Canada. She has over 10 years of experience in business
development and investment. She was an executive director of
Goldwiz Holdings Limited (delisted on 8 September 2008, stock
code: 586) from May 2006 to January 2007. She also holds
directorships in major subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Lam Yick Sing, aged 52, joined the Company on 4 June 2010.
He had been a civil servant in Hong Kong for over 20 years. Mr.
Lam was a senior administrative manager of Forefront International
(Hong Kong) Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, from June 2007 to May 2008. He was an executive
director of Tack Fat Group International Limited (Provisional
Liquidators appointed; stock code: 928).

Mr. Wen Louis, aged 77, joined the Company on 1 September
2006. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from City
University of New York. An Executive Director of Forefront
International (Hong Kong) Limited (“FIHK”) from 1993 to 1997
and General Manager of FIHK since August 2005. Mr. Wen has
extensive experience in engineering, marketing and advertising
from previous position at J. Walter Thompson Co. and Dow Jones
International Marketing Service in the United States. Mr. Wen is
also an independent non-executive director of Willie International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 273) effective from 22 April 2009.

Profile of the Management
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Profile of the Management

EEEEBE

Mr. Zhuang You Dao, aged 59, joined the Company on 29
August 2007. He graduated from The Institute of Operation
Management of China (7 B4 & & I8 2[5 ) majoring in corporate
management. Mr. Zhuang has over 30 years of experience in the
automobile industry. He is the Chairman of Tianjin Kai Sheng
Automobile Service Co., Ltd. (KEMIETEBHLHEFR A A)
and general manager of Tianjin Jinri Automobile Sale & Service
Company Limited (K#EZH AEHERBER 2 F]) . Mr. Zhuang
is a senior consultant of Shenzhen Lan-you Technology Co., Ltd.
CFEIE R R AR AT ), a developer of automobile industry
management software. Mr. Zhuang is an executive of the Chamber
of Industry and Commerce of Tianjin Xiging District, a special
procurator of the First Branch of the People’s Procuratorate of
Tianjin Municipality and a representative of the 14th Session of
People’s Congress of Tianjin Hedong District.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun, aged 51, joined the Company on 26 April
2007. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an Associated Chartered
Accountants (England and Wales). Mr. Chung has over 20 years of
experience in finance and project investment. He is an executive
director and Chairman of Radford Capital Investment Limited
(Stock code: 901), an executive director of Ming Fung Jewellery
Group Limited (Stock code: 860) and an independent non-
executive director of Heritage International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 412) and Dragonite International Limited (stock code: 329).

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora (“Ms. Lam”), aged 36, joined the
Company on 18 May 2007. She obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Law from the University of Hong Kong in 1999 and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws in 2001. Ms. Lam is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong. Ms. Lam joined Messrs. Lam & Co. in 2007 and is now
a partner of the firm. Ms. Lam is an independent non-executive
director of Tack Fat Group International Limited (stock code: 928)
and Radford Capital Investment Limited (Stock code: 901).
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Mr. Pak William Eui Won, aged 32, joined the Company on
28 December 2009. He is currently a director of Hennabun
International Group Limited and Cordoba Homes Limited which
is an associate of Willie International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 273) and, formerly a director of Hennabun Capital Group
Limited. He holds a Master of Laws degree in U.S. taxation from
the University of Washington School of Law, a Juris Doctor's
degree from the University of British Columbia Faculty of Law
and an Economics and Commerce degree from the University of
British Columbia Faculty of Arts. Mr. Pak is an attorney licensed
by the New York State Bar and is a member of the New York
State Bar Association and the American Bar Association. He was
a lawyer in the investment funds practice at White & Case’s New
York and Hong Kong offices. He has substantive experience in the
establishment and representation of both U.S. and international
private investment funds including private equity funds, hedge
funds, real estate funds, distressed funds and hybrid funds.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The directors herein present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and through its
subsidiaries and associated companies are principally engaged in
the business of selling and distribution of Nissan motor vehicles,
operating of the Nissan 4S shops, provision of heavy motor vehicle
repair and maintenance services in the PRC; provision of logistic
services in Hong Kong and the PRC; investment in forest interest;
investment in limited partnership that engages in the business of
the manufacturing of automotive components (such investment
being held for resale purpose); properties investments; securities
trading and money lending business.

After the disposal of Crown Creation Group on 21 September
2011, the Group, through its subsidiaries and associated company,
continues to be principally engaged in provision of logistic
services in Hong Kong and the PRC; investment in forest interest;
securities trading and money lending business. Other activities and
particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 38.89% of the Group's turnover in
respect of the money-lending business and the securities trading
service providers of the Group accounted for 100% of the Group's
service costs in relation to the securities trading business. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 10.37% of the
Group’s turnover in respect of the money-lending business. At
no time during the year did a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which the knowledge of the directors of the Company
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued capital) have any
material interest in any of the Group’s largest customers.

RESULT AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2011
and the state of affair of the Company and of the Group at the
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
31 to 106.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 16 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION

Details of movements in share capital and share option scheme of
the Company are set out in notes 22 and 23 respectively to the
financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTION, WARRANTS
OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

Details of movements in convertible securities of the Company are
set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the laws in the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer shares on a pro rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
repurchased a total of 3 shares of its listed shares on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the purpose of reducing fraction share in
the share consolidation of which carried out by the Company on 7

March 2011. Details of the repurchases are summarised as follows:

BE-HEREEDES

REBEE-_T——F+_A=+—RALFERN"
ARAREBMZ B A L= RN
ABADARRBR—_TE——F=ZALRETZ
&t 2R - BEFEHmnT

Purchases price

Number of per share Aggregate

ordinary shares SRBEEE purchase

Month/Year repurchased Highest Lowest consideration
£/ BB FEmzEEREE BS R HBENRE
HK$ HK$ HK$

7B TT BT 7B TT

February 2011 0.021 0.021 0.063
—E——%_H 0.021 0.021 0.063

All the shares repurchased during the year were cancelled.
Accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the par value of the repurchased shares. The difference
between the issued share capital purchased and the value of
cash consideration paid was debited to the Company's capital
redemption reserve.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in note 24 to the financial statements. The surplus in
distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2011
amounted to approximately HK$838,023,000 (2070: deficit of
HK$451,974,000).
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 107 and
108 of the annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Related party transactions are disclosed in note 28 of the
financial statements. The Company was not aware that any
related parties transaction as set out in note 28 constitute a
connected transactions of the Group, nor are there any connected
transactions that shall be disclosed in this annual report under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree
Mr. Lam Yick Sing

Mr. Wen Louis

Mr. Zhuang You Dao

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora

Mr. Pak William Eui Won

In accordance with Article 116 of the Article of Association of the
Company, Mr. Wen Louis, Mr. Zhuang You Dao and Mr. Chung
Yuk Lun will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARE AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the Company's chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they have taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies and which were
required to be entered in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares of the Company

EEAN
F R E] S o 7 AE BB AR 2 Al 2 B AT ]
BAHDEBZERRITHEL -

EERROREBROD 2EER AR

R-E——F+-_A=+—H EFEKRAQF
FETBABRARBSEMMBEEZE (F
BREFRHBERA([EHFRAERA)E
XVER) 2 B& i - MREARMD REEZEF - HEAIR
BEANBEIRIEXVEETRSDE N L
NABEZHTELFRINWEFESFAENEG R
RAIRBRzEmRARE (BEREES
BRI BRENESHEENRAESR
2w RKRE)  ARAREEF RBAE G
FE3I52EMFEE 2 B MATtk 2 s KA R
PUNNE

(i) REXFIRGBPZHFR

% of
the Company’s

Number of issued share

Name of Directors Capacity shares held capital
HARRATE BT

BEEpgA ) RGO HE BRAEZBEDHE
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong Beneficial owner 3,978,936 0.11%
BEA N L EnEAA 3,978,936 0.11%
Mr. Lam Yick Sing Beneficial owner 24,000,000 0.66%
M B E EmfEAA 24,000,000 0.66%
Mr. Wen Louis Interest of spouse 750 0.00%
BAREAE o iBiER 750 0.00%
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below and note 23 in the financial statements, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate, neither
the Directors nor any of their spouses or children under the age of
18 had any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities of
the Company or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies
was a party to and in which any of the Company’s directors or
members of its management had a material interest in, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 6 August 2007. Under the Scheme, the Directors may grant
options to those qualified participants (including Directors and
employees) who, in the opinion of the Board, have contributed or
may contribute to the development of the Group and any entity in
which the Group holds an equity interest.

During the year, no share option has been granted to any
participants, directors or employees and no share option is
outstanding pending for exercise. As at 31 December 2011, no
option has been granted to any directors nor employees.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011,
Chief Executive of the Company) has interests or short position

no persons (other than the Directors or

in the shares and underlying shares of the company, being 5%
or more of the Company's issued share capital, as known to the
Company or recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO and in accordance with information
received by the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to
28.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2011 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited,
who has been the auditor of the Company since the year 2007.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appointed Mazars CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Yeung Ming Kwong
Chairman

Hong Kong
16 March 2012
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Corporate Governance Report
¥ ERRE

The Company recognises that good governance standards RARER  ANEEETHFET2RIFERIZE
maintained throughout the Group serves as an effective risk EERMERARAZEAB ARAEEE
management mechanism for the Company. The Board of Directors (EFg ) B IBRERRTEEERKT-
(the "Board”) of the Company is committed to ensuring a high

level of corporate governance standards.

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES 1. EXERER

The Board of the Company has adopted and, except for RRARESSERMAR (BRTXHMAE
certain deviation as explained below, complied with its own ETRBEIN EFEFTEEERTRT
code on corporate governance practices which incorporate Al ZTFRIMABTEBERHERR
all the code provision in the Code on Corporate Governance BB H EMAR (T LR ]) K+
Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of A2 CEERTEHRTA ([DEEBRST
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Bl 2 FTBSFAEX - AR R ER
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The FAREBRE 2 PEERZE BERR
Company will continue to enhance the corporate governance BERBE LR ERERETRER
standards throughout the Group and ensure further standards ii s

be put in place by reference to the recommended best
practices whenever suitable and appropriate.
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2. CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

i)

Board of Directors
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised
of 8 members including 5 executive directors and 3
independent non-executive directors. The biographical
details are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this report. The
executive directors are responsible for managing the
Group’s business, including the business development,
corporate strategies and company policies. The
Independent Non-executive Directors endeavor to assist
the Board to maintain high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting standards as well as providing
adequate checks and balance for safeguarding the
interest of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors at all times
exceed one-third of the Board membership. Pursuant to
the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written
confirmation from each independent non-executive
director of his/her independence to the Company. None
of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company is appointed for a specific term which
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of
the CG Code, However, one-third of the Directors of
the Company (both executive and independent non-
executive) are subject to retirement by rotation at each
annual general meeting under the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are in line to those of
the CG Code. The Board is comprised of professionally
qualified and diversified individuals.
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Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a nomination committee.
The Board as a whole is responsible for the procedures of
appointment of board members and for nominating them
for election by shareholders on the initial appointment
and thereafter at regular intervals by rotation.

On 16 March 2012, the Board approved to set up
a Nomination Committee according to Listing Rules
requirements, the Nomination Committee comprises of
the Chairman of the Group and two of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and
financial performance of the Group. In 2011, the Board
held 15 full board meetings. In addition, executive Board
meetings are convened when necessary to deal with day-
to-day matters that require the Board’s prompt decision,
and are thus usually only executive directors would be
attended. Individual attendance records on full board
meetings and committees meetings are set out on page
24 of this Annual Report. Directors who are considered
having conflict of interests or material interests in the
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would
not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions subject to
certain exceptions set out in the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Company Secretary maintains
the minutes of the Board meetings for inspection by
directors. All directors have access to the services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board
on corporate governance and regulatory matters. Any
Director, Audit Committee member and Remuneration
Committee member of the Company may take
independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company should they so wish.
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Board and Board Committee Attendance EFEREFZEEHEE
The following table indicates the number of Board and TRETNEEEhEETZEE)
Committee Meetings during the financial year and the AU HRFEANRTERZCEA R
number of attendance by each of the Directors: EEHFEZEER 2R

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTERRE
Audit  Remuneration

Name Board Committee Committee
e Exg EREES FMZEES
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong AN EE 15/15 2/2 212
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree BEBLL 11/15 - -
Mr. Lam Yick Sing M=k E 15/15 - -
Mr. Wen Louis BAREE 14/15 - -
Mr. Zhuang You Dao HRERE 12/15 - -

Independent Non-executive BIFHITES

Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BEBLE 2/15 212 212
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora MRS L 0/15 0/2 22
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak William Eui Won%t & 9/15 2/2 212
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Directors’ Duties

The Board is charged with leadership and supervision
on the Group's affairs and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Group. Each director has a
duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

Matters that require decisions by the Board normally
include but not limited to the overall group strategies,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual and interim
results, recommendation on the appointment or
reappointment of directors, and other significant
operational and financial matters. Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. The Board acknowledges its
responsibility to prepare the financial statements and
have them audited on an annual basis. The Company has
adopted the generally accepted accounting standards in
Hong Kong in preparing financial statements. Reasonable
and prudent judgment and estimates have been made.
The Group announces its financial results on a timely
basis.

Conduct on Share Dealings

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for
securities transactions and dealings (the “Code of
Conduct”) based on the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
The terms of Code of Conduct are not less exacting
than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of
Conduct applies to all the relevant persons as defined
therein. Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors
of the Company who have confirmed in writing of their
compliance with the required standards set out in the
Code of Conduct during the year under review.
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ii)

iii)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A2.1 provides that the role of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not have a designated position of Chief Executive
Officer. The daily operation and management of the
Company is monitored by the Executive Directors. On 25
May 2011, Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong, executive director
and acting Chairman of the Company, was re-designated
as Chairman of the Group. The board of the view that
this arrangement allows more effective and efficient
business planning and decisions.

Board Committees

The Board established an Audit Committee and a
Remuneration Committee with defined terms of
reference. Both committees are chaired by Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

On 16 March 2012, the Board adopted a new terms
of reference of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee to align with the Listing Rules requirements.

(a) Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee
which comprises of three Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audit findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance, and has discussed auditing, internal
control, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the interim and annual financial
statements) with the senior management and the
auditor. In addition, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A IR 2 A
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(b) Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee responsible for review and determination
of the remuneration policy and packages of
the directors and management executives.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Executive Director. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee follow the CG
Code. No director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

iv) External Auditor

The fees payable to the Company’s auditor, Mazars CPA
Limited, in respect of audit, review services and non-
audit services in relation to the Company’s rights issue
for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
HK$800,000, HK$150,000 and HK$80,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance, and review of a system of
internal control that provides reasonable assurance of
the reliability and integrity of financial and operational
information, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the
safeguarding of assets and the compliance with laws and
regulations. The system of internal control is designed to
manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure while its goal
is to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance regarding
the achievement of organisational objectives.
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During the year, the Group adopted internal control policies
on project investment, money lending business and short-
term securities trading to enhance better internal control
as recommended by last review conducted by Mazars
CPA Limited. The Board, with the assistance of the Audit
Committee and external auditor, assess the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control system which covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control twice a year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy
of promoting investor relations and communication by
maintaining meetings with institutional shareholders, fund
managers and analysts through different means including
meetings, presentations and correspondence. In an effort to
enhance communications with shareholders and investors,
the Company maintains a website (www.forefront.com.hk)
to disseminate information relating to the latest business
developments and all Company announcements. The
Company regards the Annual General Meeting (the "AGM")
as an important event as it provides an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and its shareholders. All
shareholders of the Company are given at least a minimum
of 20 clear business days notice of the date and venue of the
AGM at which time the Directors and Committee members
are available to answer questions on the business. The
Company supports the CG Code's principle to encourage
shareholder participation. The Board, according to the Listing
Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll.
The results of the Company voting will be announced on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange website and the Company
website.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VBB MAZARS

To the shareholders of
Forefront Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Forefront
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group"”) set out on pages 31 to 106, which comprise the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

B % BERE

Mazars CPA LIMITED

TR o ot b 0 B 7 7 L 26
42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
A R AT U T 1 8 B v BR R My 40 M
Tel Tif: (852) 2909 5555

Fax {811 (852) 2810 0032

Email B : info@mazars.com.hk
Website fg1ik: www.mazars.cn
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Vo BE RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group's loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
16 March 2012

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2011

REETEWARR

BE-F——F1T-A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
=Ld——tia —E-FF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B & FEx FAET
Turnover =E X 3 (80,852) (21,703)
Other income H b A 46,434 29,239
Net release (charge) on provision RIBIRBERE (XH)
for bad and doubtful debts F R 17(b) 70,141 (89,346)
General and administrative expenses —mREITHEX (18,606) (18,913)
Changes in fair value of financial assets REERIZATEEE 2
at fair value through profit or loss BB EEZ AT EE (346,732) (116,551)
Loss from operation KEEE (329,615) (217,274)
Finance costs B & A 4(a) - (1,324)
Share of result of associates JEIRERE N B 2 2EE 11 307 1,393
Impairment loss on intangible assets BIVEEZRERE = (12,258)
Loss before taxation FRELRIE 1R (329,308) (229,463)
Taxation 18 7 - _
Loss attributable to owners of BRARIEEAEEEE
the parent 8 (329,308) (229,463)
Other comprehensive loss Hih2HEEE
Exchange difference arising from BRE G B A R B
translation of financial statements of WMREEZELZR
overseas subsidiaries - (213)
Total comprehensive loss attributable B RBEE AEA
to owners of the parent 2HEBEERE (329,308) (229,676)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(&)
Basic and diluted loss per share BREAREEESE 9 (0.12) (0.53)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e U BRI R

At 31 December 2011 R-E——#+_-H=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-F
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B & FEx FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BE k&EEB 10 56 409
Interest in associates RERE N A 7 R 11 32,248 36,487
Intangible assets mEEE 13 67,592 69,000
Available-for-sale financial assets A ENBEE 14 108,000 60,512
207,896 166,408
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through RIERIRZAFEREZ
profit or loss s EE 15 445,338 451,324
Loans receivable JE U B 3R 17 164,146 150,571
Other receivables H b fE Y308 18 2,677 20,420
Bank balances and cash RITEEF MRS 138,183 131,342
750,344 753,657
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables Hh JE S BB 3,403 29,820
Net current assets RBEEFE 746,941 723,837
NET ASSETS EEFHE 954,837 890,245
Capital and reserves AR #E
Share capital 1% 7 22 36,547 406,082
Reserves (G 918,290 484,163
TOTAL EQUITY BELE 954,837 890,245

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 KHEEGNR _ZT—_F=ATBHER

March 2012 and are signed on behalf by: BRERE - THTIINEERKREE:
Yeung Ming Kwong Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree
LR EEB
Director Director
EF EE
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Statement of Financial Position

BB AR R &

At 31 December 2011 R-E——#+_-_H=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2 FExT FAETT

Non-current assets kRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries N OIEENE R 16 881,800 818,731
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHNERBEE 14 - -
881,800 818,731

Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H {th e W 5008 18 343 583
Bank balances and cash SRTHEFENRS 65,589 129,783
65,932 130,366
Current liabilities RBafE

Other payables H & < 5k IE 1,190 2,963
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE AT B B A B 308 16 70,799 86,905
71,989 89,868
Net current (liabilities) assets RE(EE)EEFE (6,057) 40,498
NET ASSETS EEFE 875,743 859,229

Equity and reserves RER B
Share capital fig A 22 36,547 406,082
Reserves & 24 839,196 453,147
TOTAL EQUITY BELE 875,743 859,229

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16
March 2012 and are signed on behalf by:

Yeung Ming Kwong
BEX
Director

EF

KAEEFER _ZT—_F=ATB#HER

BENE YA MIEEREREE:

Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERRERSB X

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZ-—F——F+ A=+ —HIFEF
Attributable to owners of the parent
BARREAEE
Equity
component of
Share  zero coupon Capital  Cumulative
Share Share option  convertible Capital  redemption translation Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve bonds reserve reserve reserve deficit equity
ZEE
TRRES
& ROEE  BRERE <BEEH7 EXfE EAEEREE RTRERG 2 EH RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL Thx TAL T TERL Tk
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-Z%-A-H
Beginning of year 1 43,938 805,044 - 23,230 10,482 1,173 213 (475,683) 408,397
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (229,463) (229,463)
Exchange difference arising from BEBNEREECELES
translation of foreign operation - - - - - (213) - (213)
Total comprehensive loss FR2EFBAEE
for the year - - - - - 213) (229,463) (229,676)
Transactions with owners BEBARTZRS
Issue of shares on rights ssue, fEREETRA
net of expenses (BHBED) 109,846 188,977 - - - - - 298,823
Share options granted RHBRE - - 1 - - - - 1
Exercise of share options TERRE 4,394 9,667 (1) - - - - 14,060
Convertible bonds issued and BRBATRRES
converted, net of expenses (BABRFER) 32,448 76,528 - (23,230 - - - 85,746
Issue of optional bonds BTRENES - - - 10,472 - - - 10472
Conversion of optional bonds BRERIES 11,357 27,183 - (10472) - - - 28,028
Issue of new shares, net of expenses ~ E7TIR (2 HBFEX) 204,099 70,295 - - - - - 274,394
Total transactions with owners ~ EEBARTZRZEE 362,144 372,610 - (23,230 - - - 711,524
At 31 December 2010 and
at 1 January 2011 406,082 1,177,654 - - 10,482 1173 - (705,146) 890,245
Comprehensive loss
Loss for the year - - - - - - (329,308) (329,308)
Total comprehensive loss ER2EFEEE
for the year - - - - - - (329,308) (329,308)
Transactions with owners BEBARTZRS
Issue of shares on rights issue, fEREETRA
net of expenses (note 22(b)) (BNBAR)
(fzE22(0)) 32,487 361,413 - - - - - 393,900
Capital reorganisation (note 22(a)  RAEA (K522()) (402,022) - - - - - 402,022 -
Total transactions with owners ~ EEFARTZRHEE (369,535) 361,413 - - - - 402,022 393,900
At 31 December 2011 R=Z--§+-A=1-A 36,547 1,539,067 - - 10,482 1173 - (632,432) 954,837
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2011

RERETREX

B2 T——FF+_A=+—HIFEF

2011 2010
—E——F —ZF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt &E THER FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES A S
Net cash used in operations KEMAREFE 25 (362,359) (515,878)
Interest paid AR E = (38)
Net cash used in operating activities REERFMABSTE (362,359) (515,916)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Interest received [REEESS 581 114
Dividend received from an associate Bl — 2N a8 = 1,200
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEY %  BE L& = (74)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHEHEWBREE
financial assets (125,281) (60,512)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—HERBARMEHRE 19 100,000 85,000
Net cash (used in) generated from WEES (FrA)
investing activities FEREFE (24,700) 25,728
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Proceeds from issue of optional bonds/ BATHEBMES TR
convertible bonds BEHMEHIA - 38,500
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHIRFT 15 5RIA - 135,192
Proceeds from issue of new shares under 1R {EEE AL AE AT 21 31T
share option scheme TR P45 3R - 14,060
Proceeds from issue of new shares on HAR B BT E AR 2 P15 5K T8
rights issue, net of expenses (BEHMBRAR) 393,900 298,823
Net cash generated from RMETHREREER
financing activities 393,900 486,575
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AREHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_—F——F+_-_HA=+4—HIFF&F

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T
Effect on cumulative translation B REREFE
adjustments - (213)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and BeRBESESEYEN
cash equivalents (R2)F8E 6,841 (3,826)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzsReRReFEY
beginning of year 131,342 135,168
Cash and cash equivalents at FHR2ESRESEEY
end of year, represented by DSRTHEFERAESRE
bank balances and cash 138,183 131,342
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Forefront Group Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office, principal
place of business, activities and particulars of the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out in the Corporation Information
and Report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2010 consolidated financial statements. The adoption
of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective from the current year had no significant
effects on the Group’s results and financial position for
the current and prior years. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

B %% R MY R

DNAEH
BOSEERARANFASESEMMNX
YZBARRAERODREBB AR
PrBERAR (B LM ARE R
HMB ARz M ERREEL RN
Rl KB RFRHARAREHNME
EEWmEAN-

TESFHE

HEEAMBRRDIEFT BV HREE
A (IFBMBREEA )R- FBR
BHREE QG  BRELGMHA
g ([BAEERAE])EHZAEER
BEWHHREER FEGTEN([F
AL RRE - BEARER
AR EBAERAED 2B ERTE -t F4R
EMBHRRTTEBRMES LMHRL
BB BRI

HEGAVBRRIMBEELE T —
EEGAVBBRERARMN G BRE
BB - RAATERNEEBHELNA
FEERZHA/RETEEMBRE
EUUAEERAFERBEFEZE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 was revised to include a new definition of related
party and to provide a partial exemption from the disclosure
requirements in relation to related party transactions and
outstanding balances, including commitments, with:

(a) a government that has control, joint control or significant
influence over the reporting entity; and

(b) another entity that is a related party because the same
government has control, joint control or significant
influence over both the reporting entity and the other
entity.

The Group adopted the new definition in its accounting
policies but such adoption does not have an effect on the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - Improvements to HKFRSs
2010

The improvements comprise a number of improvements
to Standards of which Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised):
Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarification of
statement of changes in equity is considered to be relevant
to the Group. The Amendments clarify that the reconciliation
of each component of other comprehensive income may be
presented either in the statement of changes in equity or in
the notes to the financial statements. The Group has decided
to continue presenting the reconciliation in the statement
of changes in equity and such adoption does not have any
significant effects on the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as
at 31 December each year. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as that
of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceased.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position,
separately from owners of the parent. The non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, is measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the parent and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Bt %% R MY &

2. TESFBE(E)

FFEEE
MELFMBERRMERAIGFERERES
RS2 PR AR R XX 51 2 & 5T R PR
o ETHMBTETARFEFE

REEE
REMBHRREBARRNEMENE
RABEFFT_RA=1T—BRIEZH
BHR -MBRRZHBHRR N ER
RAMERZBEFEERERRFER
—HIZ R BRRE -

EEAAAMZAERE X5 WER
EMARAER BHFELRSE2HY
EIGT PGS T R LR
BERAREEREHBELEA LA
HE-

FERBE NG A 2E A REK MR
EMBRRR ZBEFOHE W E
BRAHAEBADHZS - REWIE R F
ZHERERRERERERER BT
A ARNMRKKE R RIEREIZLL )
BOoWMBBRARZFEE NTRAYF
E RN A REER A REB LR
FEECHATBEILIAE-FTER
EeHRRERKEEE-

DI E KA A RE
BREMEtE2mEASEKRBEER
BRBFEBANLIFEEED - 2K
N )S SYNCIE NP E S 2 g
o AMEN RS EEOHE RS 2B
3R B Al o

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 — 2 —— & &% 39



40

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY R

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the parent.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary is recognised on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary is accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, jointly controlled entity or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity, in which the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from activities.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses.
The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

The Group’s investment in associate is accounted for under
the equity method of accounting. The consolidated statement
of comprehensive income includes the Group's share of
the post-acquisition results of the associate for the year.
The consolidated statement of financial position includes
the Group's share of the net assets of the associate and
also goodwill. The Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses when the Group’s share of losses of the
associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest
in the associate, which includes any long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate.

On the loss of significant influence, the Group remeasures
any retained interest in the former associate at fair value. The
difference between the fair value of any retained investment
and proceeds from disposing of the partial interest in the
associate and the carrying amount of the investment at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised in profit
or loss. In addition, all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of the former associate are
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
former associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. The fair value of the retained interest on the date
of ceasing to be an associate is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition as a financial asset subsequently.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is measured
as the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair
value of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree
over the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiary.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is measured as the excess of the cost of
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired associate or
jointly controlled entity.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary is recognised as a
separate asset. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates
or jointly controlled entities is included in interests in
associates or jointly controlled entities. Goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, which is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment test and
determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units. An impairment loss on goodwill is
not reversed.

In respect of a subsidiary, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiary over the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree, if any, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase. In respect of an associate or a jointly
controlled entity, any excess of the Group's share of its net
fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment is recognised immediately as income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repair and maintenance are charged to the
profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement 50%
Furniture and fixture 20%-50%
Motor vehicles 33%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year in which the item is derecognised.
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T L

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
in consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
definite) and impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives which are determined by the
period over which it is expected to bring economic benefits to
the Group. The forestry land use rights and tree entitlement
are amortised from the date they are available for use over
their estimated useful life of 50 years.

The Group reviews the estimated useful life and amortisation
method for these intangible assets annually and makes
adjustment when necessary.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
and only when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A financial
liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant
gain and loss recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
(i) acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not designated and effective
hedging instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss only if (i) the designation eliminate
or significantly reduce the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or (i) they
are part of a group of financial assets and / or financial
liabilities that are managed and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded
derivatives that would need to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative
is prohibited.
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T L

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including loans and other receivables
and amounts due from subsidiaries are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except where receivables are interest-free
loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect
of discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition over the year to maturity. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated at this category or not
classified in any of the other categories of financial assets.
They are measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as a separate component of equity until the
assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until
the assets are determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets, other
than those at fair value through profit or loss, are impaired.
The impairment loss of financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in subsequent
periods through profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to
a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities include
other payables and amount due to subsidiaries. All financial
liabilities except for derivatives are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

T L

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalent represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
net of bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases.

Realised gain or loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised on a trade date basis whilst
unrealised gain or loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised based on the change in their fair
value at the end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from the provision of financial services
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group entities are measured using currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Group's
functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except for those
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the gains or losses are also recognised directly in
equity.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

e Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate;

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group's net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a
separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences deferred in the separate component of equity
relating to that foreign operation is recognised in profit
or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

T L

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess whether
there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets with finite useful lives may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in
profit or loss immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A IR 2 A

TESHEE(F)
FUMBEEZRME

REREPERA AEEZH AR
SNERFRIS B R ARFE R BB RE R
EME BELRREBALABRAEA
FHZ B EER L IRE kA
RZBEBESE THEFENA R
TR - WA EAREFREE - BIRE
HERAFEREERARERERE (AR
SER/E)HIAZBEEEZIREEE -
fi A E R B E 2 A B & 58 0 A
SHEAGFABIELAREREZ&D
BEMAY (MReELEMN) 2AIREE
o

MEEXRSELEU 2 JREI M
AERERESE MEESARSEL
BizkAcHEEREAATKESHE-
BB 5 1R B B AR A B 2 ©

BEZREBRBABRREBTFREILE
BRAMEBERZBATEEZEESLR
CELBUNZRASERR -BEOZRE
BEEBRINKENERIREZS/EA -

BB
EARBRBESHMAAERE 2K
EREERT METHZETAEFTE
MHEBERBBBEEz T FEfhET
R BlemRiE oAiEcte
EEAXHFERARBREHEEN-
AEEERERMEMERAEHEE
WEH AR - ARBRE A Z S EfEE - fd
ERBESECRREZEER AR
BeHREABTEHERMEIHZA
E-HAKEBEHRHRBHSESER A
BERSHEAREBFEE HEREE
ERLEBERT THER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as operating
leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the net consideration agreed for the use of leased
asset.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present value.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Long service payment

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service payment
under the Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method and discounted to its
present value and after deducting the fair value of any related
assets, including retirement scheme benefit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

T L

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’'s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value of share options granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a reserve
within equity. The fair value is determined using the Black-
Scholes Model, taking into account the terms and conditions
of the transactions, other than conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the years in
which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled
to the award (“vesting date”). During the vesting period, the
number of share options that is expected to vest ultimately
is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged / credited to profit or loss
for the year of the review, with a corresponding adjustment to
the reserve within equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, any
deferred tax arises from initial recognition of goodwill; or
other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not
recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY &

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

If the Group is itself

related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes

subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Bt %% R MY &

2. TESFHBE(E)

BAL(#E)

(b) (#&)

(52

2R

8

(a)

(v) REBRS BEBRSEHEE
MEZm A RN EBE g EARE
EEMBECERZIES W
AEBAE BZTE AJERE
Z B E TR R B A PR E

BERX(a)BIHZ ALEH
sk KRR o

(vi)

%%i

(@Q)VEFIBHZ AT HZEEE
EAFENRABZER (HH
BRR)ZEBEREKE -

(vii)

By =

MALTZERRAEBHNEZE
FREEZBALTHEZBAL

i

iﬂ\@ a3

E7RIGKE B

ZERANLTZFEREBXEE
(=

(b)) ZBATZEBXAEHBEZTF

2z &

ZHRATHEREBRRAEHIRZZ
BA°

%@AiZE%¢ BeEnrBE&
fERRZMBRAR MEERARRE
éé@TZWEQT

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 = F —— £ &3 55



56

Notes to the Financial Statements
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’'s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
financial statements. They affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made.
They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on
experience and relevant factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period of revision and future
periods, in case the revision also affects future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in subsidiaries/
associates has suffered any impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 and follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining
whether amounts due from these entities are impaired. Details
of the approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of future cash
flows, including expected dividends, from the assets and the
selection of appropriate discount rates. Future changes in
financial performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause the
adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

For available-for-sale investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when
determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account financial information regarding the issuers/
investees.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability of the loans
receivable. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including assessing the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of these customers were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowance will be required. At the end of reporting period,
the carrying amount of loans receivable after provision
for impairment amounted to HK$164,146,000 (2070:
HK$150,571,000).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Fair value estimation

Unlisted convertible notes are stated at fair value based on
the valuations performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. In
relying on the valuation reports, the directors of the Group
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuations is reflective of the current market
conditions.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected cash flows from the intangible
assets and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Details of the
estimates used to calculate the recoverable amount are given
in note 13.

Future changes in HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which
the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
to HKFRS 1 Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters’
(Revised)

Amendments to Disclosures — Transfer of Financial
HKFRS 7 Assets!

Amendments to Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
HKAS 12 Assets?
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% R MY R

Future changes in HKFRS (Continued)

Amendments to
HKAS 1
(Revised)

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKAS 32
HKFRS 9

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Consolidated financial statements*

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosures of Interests with Other

Entities*
Fair value measurement*

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase

of a Surface Mine*

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities*
Presentation — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities®
Financial Instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

The Group is in the process of assessing the possible impact
on the future adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs, but is
not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their impact on

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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3. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 3. EEERKHE
Turnover and revenue recognised by category are analysed as BOHEBRz EEBRWESITOT
follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
(a) Turnover (a) E¥5
Net realised loss on disposal of HERBRERZ A TE
financial assets at fair value through RIEZVBEEZ
profit or loss EEBREEFE (97,884) (30,913)
Interest income from provision RESRRE 2 FEWA
of financial services 11,517 6,764
Dividend income % B U A 5,515 2,446
(80,852) (21,703)
2011 2010
=E——F —ZT-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHT
(b) Other income (b) EAftg A
Interest income FE WA 581 114
Write back of other payable (note) 1 (0] B JE AT R IE (B EE) 23,910 -
Gain on disposal/Net gain HE—HBBARZ
on acquisition and BF) W HE K
disposal of a subsidiary HE—MEHBAFZ
(note 19) BAFEE (PFEE19) 17,661 25,000
Bargain purchase arising from WE—RNBRAREEY
acquisition of a subsidiary BEESR - 3,262
Other HAb 4,282 863
46,434 29,239
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3. TURNOVER AND REVENUE (Continued) 3. BxERWE (&)
Note: At 31 December 2010, included in other creditors was an amount of M R=ZFT—TF+_A=+—R8 HMER
HK$23,910,000 payable to Excel Way Investments Limited in connection RREEEMERIZEEAR A A ZREA
with last instalment of capital injection in Tinhua Excel Way Special Fiber 23,910,000/ 7T + Ty 8K 255 B FF @M 4 (58
(Xintai) Company Limited of US$3.1 million as more fully described in Z)BMRAA &K% —H£E3,100,000% T
note 11(a) to the 2010 annual report. The whole payable amount was Bl (EZFER2M -2 —SEFHM=E
written back to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2011 upon 1M@) FHRENREBEEREE-Z——F
the approval of capital reduction proposal by the local authority. T A=t —BIEFEEM S EEAELE
RHBTHERERIR
4. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 4. BREAER
This is stated after charging: BR B AT B R AT TN BR T 51 &5 T 12 510k -
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAE T
(a) Finance costs (a) AEHLEK
Interest on interest-bearing BERAEFAZEEEL
borrowings wholly AEEBEZHE
repayable within five years - 38
Amortisation of effective BHTEETNBRES 2
interest on zero coupon BEBEF S
convertible bonds - 1,286

- 1,324
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4. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4, BRBATEE (&)
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHEIT
(b) Other items (b) EftEE
Auditor’s remuneration ZERD 2 950 900
Depreciation of property, ME--WEREREITE
plant and equipment 353 867
Operating lease charges on premises MELEHRET L 1,463 1,036
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#E 1,408 1,242
Staff costs, including directors’ BEINAK BREEFMHE -
emoluments:
— Salaries and other allowances — % & KA MER 4,828 5,087
— Contributions to defined — A EHRET IR
contribution plans 143 150
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5. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 5. EEM&

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-E--H+ZB=t-AL%EE

Basic

salaries, Mandatory

allowance Provident

Appointed Resigned and other Fund scheme
during the year  during the year Fees benefits contribution Total

Exfe. B

BER MEe
Name of Director £33 REAZHR RERRE ik AR BE L8 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TiEn TER TiEn TR
Mr. Wen Louis BREE - - - 318 - 318
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree BRBNT - - - 420 12 432
M. Yeung Ming Kwong BREEE - - - 420 12 432
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun EEMLE - - 120 - - 120
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora WREat - - 120 = = 120
Mr. Zhuang You Dao drEks - - - 120 - 120
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak Willam Eui WonZt £ - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Lam Yick Sing MEBEE - - - 375 12 387
360 1,653 36 2,049
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5. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 5. EEME (£2)

Year ended 31 December 2010
HECT-THE+-A=T-AL5E

Basic
salaries, Mandatory
allowance Provident
Appointed Resigned and other Fund scheme
during the year  during the year Fees benefits contribution Total
iR Eo4i]:d
BHR NS
Name of Director EEfA RERZE RERBE ik R BEL: @&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TAL TAL TER
Mr. Wen Louis BREE - - - 300 - 300
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree EREL - - - 420 12 432
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong BRKEE - - - 420 12 43
M. Chung Yuk Lun BEBEE - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Ting Wing Cheung, TkER4E - 17 May - 160 5 165
Sherman AATLA
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora HRE Lt - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhuang You Dao ERERE - - - 120 - 120
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak William Eui Wont 2 - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Lam Yick Sing MEBLE 4 June - - 207 7 214
~AEA
360 1,627 36 2,023
No director waived any emoluments during the year. No FAVEEEHETMAMNE -REBE-F
incentive payment nor compensation for loss of office —— ST A=T—HIEFE £&
was paid or payable to any director for the year ended 31 1E 488 1) (R 28 =5 S S ol P (R RT SRIB E
December 2011 (2010: Nil). RBESHAHMBAHE (—F-FF - #F)-
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 6. EEFAL
Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments, TfusEeHFALTH B (=ZF—F
three (20710: three) are executive directors whose emoluments Fi=f)BRATEFT HEZHEER
are disclosed in note 5. B FESRH FE
The emoluments paid to the remaining two (2070: two) FRENEBMA (ZFE—FF - H)
individuals during the year were as follows: ALTzMEamT:
2011 2010
—g——5 -z TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FEIT
Basic salaries and allowances BERE & RER 1,020 1,020
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHER 24 24
1,044 1,044
The emoluments fell within the following band: e FUATEER:

Number of individuals

A
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z % T%1,000,000%8 7T 2 2
During the year, no payments were paid to the five highest FA-AKRETERNRIUGRSHAL (B
paid individuals (including directors and other employees) REERAEMES) XMNHIE ERAR
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BYINER ok hn B AR & B0y 2 425 ok BE B A

compensation for loss of office. B
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7. TAXATION 7.

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
exempted from taxation in the Cayman lIslands. Hong Kong
Profits Tax has not been provided in the financial statements
as the Company and its subsidiaries have no assessable profits
or have unutilised tax losses to set off against current year's
assessable profits for the years of 2011 and 2010.

Bi 1R
ARARRFEEHRSEMAL W EHE
BMAESHERE - AR AR A KEM
BRARIR-FE——FR-F-ZTFIE
FERRTB G A B R A EE B AE
HEFEZRRB SN B8R
WRPARBENS RS-

Reconciliation of tax expenses IR F X HIR
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before taxation B 0 i &5 18 (329,308) (229,463)
Income tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax REBNFHIHE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZFE—FF:16.5%)
SEZAER (54,336) (37,861)
Net effect of non-deductible TAHMBAY 2Rl
expenses/tax-exempted revenue %y (7,493) (1,006)
Unrecognised temporary differences ANERZ B EE 15 106
Unrecognised deferred tax assets FHEMEEBE R ER
in respect of tax losses REEIBEE 61,814 38,761
Taxation as per statement of 2EMAIREFTS 2 FHIE
comprehensive income - -
8. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 8. REREMLER

The loss attributable to shareholders includes a loss of
HK$377,386,000 (2010: HK$130,947,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the parent is based on the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,686,820,000 shares (2070 (restated):
430,184,000 shares) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted
in the calculation of the basic loss per share for the years of
2011 and 2010 has been adjusted to reflect the impact of the
capital reorganisation effected in March 2011 and rights issue
effected in April 2011.

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the parent is based on loss for the year of HK$329,308,000
(2010: HK$229,463,000) and the denominators detailed
above in respect of weighted average number of shares.

Diluted loss per share

As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted
loss per share was the same as basis loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Bt %% R MY R

BREE

BREAEBIE

BRRER ARGSRERBEBIIZE
AT 3172,686,820,0000% ( —F —FF
(E3l) :430,184,0004% ) & & f% hn#E F
HEEHE-

HE T —FR-T-TE2IRE
AIAR RN 2 BB E T B (E
AR URMA = F - —F = AR
IRAEERR-E——FEARGL

Hhzeg-

HAFHE AEEERERNEEIRF
N E518329,308,0008 7L ( = F —F4F -
229,463,000/ ) e £ X EHaL B B H
mgEFEHE s BEE-

SREEER
BE-FT——FR-F-—FTFTZA
ST HEFE BREEABEFY
BBRELAR ReREEERRES
BEAREERER -
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10. ¥ BERRE

Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HENLEE BARRE "E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FTAEL TET TET
Carrying amount REE
At beginning of year 2010 RZE-ZET] - 338 866 1,204
Additions NE - 74 - 74
Disposals & - () - )
Depreciation e - (193) (674) (867)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF
+-A=+—H - 217 192 409
At 31 December 2010 RZE—TF
+-RA=+—-A
Cost A 1,247 1,016 2,219 4,482
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (1,247) (799) (2,027) (4,073)
- 217 192 409
Carrying amount IRAEE
At beginning of year 2011 RZE——F1] - 217 192 409
Depreciation neE - (161) (192) (353)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——-&
+=ZA=+-H - 56 - 56
At 31 December 2011 RZE——-§
+ZA=+—-H
Cost B 1,247 1,016 2,219 4,482
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (1,247) (960) (2,219) (4,426)
- 56 - 56
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11. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

The interest in the associates is set out below: RERE ARz EmEHF T
As at
31 December
As at 31 December 2011 2010
RZE-F
= A
R-ZZ-—-%+ZA=t-H =+—H
Golden Tianjin
Fame Kai Sheng Total
2 XEMEB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET THET
Share of net assets EEEERE 32,248 4,546 36,794 36,487
Realised upon disposal of a HE— RN B A REER
subsidiary (note 19) (Ki3E19) - (4,546) (4,546) -
32,248 - 32,248 36,487

RBEHERB 2 FEMERAFBELN
period are as follows: T

Details of the principal associate at the end of the reporting

Proportion of

registered
Principal place capital and
of operation/ voting power
Form of Place of held by
Name of associate business incorporation the Group  Principal activities
EEEfE
TEEERY EMEAR
BenaEH E3 17 B S 3t B REEFMGELE FEER
Golden Fame International Incorporated Hong Kong 40%  Logistic business
Investment Group Limited
("Golden Fame")
T EREREEEER LA EHE B 40% MRER

3=
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11. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) M. RBERR 2R (&)
Summary of financial information of associates are as follows: EMERNn s MBENRENT

Golden Fame Tianjin Kai Sheng Total
Ea REmaE @zt

2011 2010 2011 2010 201 2010

—g2--f -2 -2--f _2-% -g2--f _2-%2f%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER i TR TAL TiEn TAL

Share of associates assets ~ Ef:BENFEERER

and liabilities
Non-current assets FRBEE 28,283 28,891 36,626 21,458 64,909 50,349
Current assets MYEE 61,627 106,462 78,055 37,340 139,682 143,802
Non-current liabilities FRBak (1,654) (23,158) - - (1,654) (23,158)
Current liabilities nYRE (53,178) (66,538) (105,044) (51,098) (158,222) (117,636)
Non-controlling interest FhRER (2,830) (12,645) (5,091) (4,225) (7,921) (16,870)

Share of associates' revenue EfSBEATNERER

and results
Revenue Yz 177,750 316,127 192,402 216,855 370,152 532,982
Profit (Loss) B (BE) (764) 603 1,071 790 307 1393
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12. GOODWILL 12. 58
Natural Harvest Total
Leapfly BR @t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TExT

Reconciliation of carrying amount year 1R £ S ¥ IR — &
ended 31 December 2010 and year —= =&+ —R
ended 31 December 2011

Zt+—HILEFERK

BE-ZT——F

+=ZA=+—H

LFE
At beginning of year and RETRRER

at end of year - - -

At 31 December 2010 R

+ZA=+—H
Cost BN 20,000 55,000 75,000
Accumulated impairment losses R REEE (20,000) (55,000) (75,000)
At 31 December 2011 HNoTB——F

+t=A=+—H
Cost & 7R - - -
Accumulated impairment losses 2 EEE - - -
During the year, the Group disposed of its entire equity FA-AREEHEHEMNCrown Creation
interest in Crown Creation Limited. Upon the completion of Limited,Z 2 PR AN 35 o 1 B STA 1% -
the disposal, both Leapfly Limited and Natural Harvest Limited Leapfly Limited X BRI E B R A TR
ceased to become the subsidiaries of the Group. BAKREBZMWERF -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 —Z—— &% 71



72

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY R

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13. B EE

Forestry
rights
R 1
HK$'000
FHETT

Reconciliation of carrying amount IRMeRBEE-—BHE_T—TF

— year ended 31 December 2010 TZA=+—HIEFE
Acquisition during the year FAWE 82,500
Amortisation B aH (1,242)
Impairment loss VEREN R (12,258)
At end of the reporting period R E R4 R H 69,000
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZF—FF+-_A=+—H

Cost (DN 82,500
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses ZEr R REREE (13,500)
69,000
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13. B EE (£&)

Forestry
rights
it FE
HK$'000
FERT
Reconciliation of carrying amount RESEHKR-BE_ZT——F
- year ended 31 December 2011 TZRA=+—HLEFE
At beginning of the year REA 69,000
Amortisation B 8H (1,408)
At end of the reporting period RBEHERA 67,592
At 31 December 2011 R-ZB-——%+ZA=1t—H
Cost (DN 82,500
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses RETEE RREEE (14,908)
67,592

The intangible assets represents the rights to (i) obtain 50% of
forestry land use rights and forestry trees entitlement of three
forestry sites in Simao District, Puer City, Yunnan Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"); and (ii) share 50% of

distributable profits of these forests.

The term of forestry land use rights and forestry trees
entitlement of these three forestry sites are 50 years from 8
January 2010 to 7 January 2060, according to the re-issued
forestry land use rights and ownership rights issued by the

PRC local government.

No income was generated from the forests for the year ended

31 December 2011 (2010: HK$NIl).

R ABEEOA T R EMR: (VR EHE
ARHNE ([FH)) EWAEETES
[ = 84 PR 4 R A 2 50%
i 1 RG)2 8 3 F A 2 50% A 2 i
iR

B35 P B 3 7 BT B2 3T % 2 M AR
TR AT B #E - 3% = SRRt 2 AR {5
RAERMAEEBRBE - —TF—
ANBREZEZZERTF—HLHIERH
50%F °

BE_ZT——F+-A=+t—HLLF

& BRI ME E A (ZF—
EFE-FHET) -
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14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14. T HHEMBEE
The Group The Company
rEE YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
“2--%% _"T-T§ —B--f _EZ-%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt TR TR TET FHT
At cost BEA
Unlisted equity interest REBHIZ
outside Hong Kong ELEmRTER 6,908 6,908 6,908 6,908
Unlisted equity interest in REEZF LTRAE
Hong Kong s 14(c) = 25,000 = -
Unlisted investment in a REBEN—HER
limited partnership outside ~ EFABAFZ
Hong Kong FETRE 14(b),(0) = 60,512 - -
Unlisted equity interestina M —FREE
private limited company ERESHMKL 2
incorporated in the British BABRRALZ
Virgin Islands FEMBRAER 14(a) 108,000 - = -
114,908 92,420 6,908 6,908
Impairment loss recognised ~ BHERZHEEE (6,908) (31,908) (6,908) (6,908)
108,000 60,512 - -

The unlisted investments represented long-term investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A IR 2 A

FLEMREENRMABRETZIELT
BABESZEHRRE -ARIFLTMRE
ZEERAFEMGLAREBN EERA
BEASHABEREQATE HUNSHSE
MR AR AR ERER & -



Notes to the Financial Statements

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

14(a)

14(b)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 6 May
2011, the Group through its wholly-owned subsidiary
Equity Base Investments Limited acquired 4.79%
(subsequently diluted to 3.76%) equity interest in a
private group engaged in securities brokerage and
provision of finance at a consideration of HK$108
million.

Details of the equity investee at 31 December 2011
were as follows:

Bt %% R MY R

14 JHHEEMBEE (£)

14(a) REAHPR-_ZT——FHARAH

ZREWMSR AEEERAHEDAE
B B ‘A &) Equity Base Investments
Limited s B — A1t FFE H &L R
REMEZILAEER Z24.79%A
igEm (HBHEEEE3.76%) ¢
K& A108,000,0007% T °

BRERZRERFANR_-T——F
TZA=+t—BZHBWMT:

Proportion of
the nominal
value of issued
Participating

Share held

Company name Place of incorporation Class of share held by the Group
KEEFRBERT

SEROEE

DNAEHE = AR 2 3t Bh F 45 1R 49 38 ) Bat
Hennabun Capital British Virgin Islands Ordinary Shares 3.76%

Group Limited
RBRXHES

In August 2010, the Group agreed to acquire 22.22%
equity interest in AITS L.P. (for which the Group
took no part in the conduct or management but
merely acted as a passive investor), which controls a
group of companies engaged in the manufacturing
of automotive components, for a consideration
of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$78,000,000). The first payment amounting
to approximately US$7,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$60,512,000) was paid in August
2010 and the remaining balance of approximately
US$2,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,281,000) was paid in April 2011 respectively.

14b) *—ZT-—ZTF)\A AKERE

WEEAITS L.P (A& B 22 8
HEESER EREWHEE
EORAREH AN ERENR
BHEIMEZRF])22.22% B A HE
% £ {810,000,000% 7T (A
M #)78,000,0006 7T) - B E X
JH 497,800,000 7T (FEE R4
60,512,000 L) ER = — =
F)\A X e 828 492,200,000%
JC (FZER#917,281,000 ) 2
St T
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14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

14(c) In September 2011, certain unlisted investments with 14(c)
aggregate cost and accumulated impairment loss of
HK$102,793,000 and HK$25,000,000 were realised
upon the disposal of a subsidiary as further disclosed in

note 19 below.

14. HHENBEE (&)

RZE——FNLA BRARR
sHEEETE S B1102,793,000/8 7T
}:25,000,0008 L2/ T L™
HERHE—FMWBAR (AT
ST EE19ME — SRR ) R IR o

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

15. RIERIIRELAFEREE 2K

PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2011 2010
—E——5F —E-FF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FE T FET
Held for trading, equity securities FHEEEZHFB LTRAES
listed in Hong Kong
At beginning of year REA] 393,003 273,919
Additions A 1,067,427 682,508
Disposals & (731,136) (430,593)
Fair value adjustments NFEHE (326,410) (132,831)
At the end of the reporting period ~ A FREHE R A 402,884 393,003
Designated upon initial REABEAREE2EZ
recognition, unlisted convertible 3 LHA#KREE
notes
At beginning of year REH 58,321 -
Additions A 40,025 42,041
Disposals & (35,570) -
Fair value adjustments NEEFE (20,322) 16,280
At the end of the reporting period R ¥R&E 4R B 15(a) 42,454 58,321
Total et 445,338 451,324
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The fair value of listed equity securities is based on quoted
market prices in active markets at the end of the reporting
period.

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group’s
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss exceeded
10% of the Group’s total assets. In addition, the Group’s
shareholding in each of the investees did not exceed 20% of
the issued shares of the investees.

15(a) Valuation basis of unlisted convertible notes

The debt investments are unlisted convertible notes
issued by several listed companies in Hong Kong and
classified under financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. At the end of the reporting period,
the convertible notes were revalued by independent
professional valuer using the Binomial Tree Pricing
Model. The contractual maturity of the convertible
notes is used as an input to this model.

Bt %% R MY R

15. REERIIRZR LA FEREBEZHEE
E(E&)
ETRRAE S 2 A TAE TR RS B A
REEEBRTEMBRTENE-

RBREPRERD  AEEREBRKREAD
FEREZVHEENEBRARER
BEZ10% ° Lo REBRFEIERE
RAZBRBLBBEZFEIRERT
BEEITD220% °

15(a) LM ARBREBZEEREE

ERRER/RZHEER LT AR
TZHRLETARBRER 288
RERERAFEREZVBEE
E-RBEHERD AT BRRER
RABIBEXMGHEMERA AR
HRERETEG - AT RRER
ZEHDHACRERNRE ZH
e

Convertible ~ Convertible ~ Convertible ~ Convertible

note A note B note C note D Total

TRREEA TEREREEB TEREEC TERREED @t

HK$'000

TR

Principal amount (HK$'000) ~ A& (F#T) 4,500 17,000 10,000 30,000 61,500
Date of maturity B A 9 December 30 November 13 October 27 May
2013 2013 2014 2016
“Z-Zf Tz ~"Z-mF —E-RF
+ZAAB +—-A=+H +A+=8 #HAZt++H
Coupon rate 28 8% per annum Zero coupon 5% per annum Zero coupon
BESE ZEE BESE ZER

Early redemption clause REBRIEX (i)

(i

(iii) (iv)
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

15(a) Valuation basis of unlisted convertible notes

15. RERREZEATFTEEEB2UKE

E (&)

15(a) LT ARKREBZEEEE

(Continued) (#&)
Convertible ~ Convertible  Convertible ~ Convertible
note A note B note C note D Total
TREREBEA TEREEE TERZEC TRREED @t
HK$'000
TER
Volatility of underlying BB LTRN KR
listed shares 51.15% 54.67% 93.17% 79.71%
Risk-free interest rate (with ~ EERRFE (Z2REA
reference to Hong Kong NEESES)
Exchange Fund Note) 0.34% 0.34% 0.89% 0.85%
Fair value at R-E--f
31 December 2011 +ZA=+t-HZAYTE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEr FTEL TEL TER
Convertible notes/bonds RRER /&5 3,657 14,364 10,000 14,433 42,454
(i) The issuer of convertible note A may redeem the (i) AB|BREBEATEITANR

whole or any part of the notes at any time after

1 year from the issue date by giving not less

than seven business days prior notice.

(ii) The issuer of convertible note B may redeem the

whole or any part of the notes at any time from

the issue date to the maturity date by giving not

less than seven business days prior notice.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15. RESRRBRAFERE2UBE
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) E(E)
15(a) Valuation basis of unlisted convertible notes 15(a) kLT UEREBEZHEEE

(Continued) (#&)

(iiiy  The issuer of convertible note C may redeem (i) FAIREREBECEITANMH
the whole or any part (in an amount or integral BEITAHRED A LR
multiple of HK$1,000,000) at any time from the REHABEZEHE2FEE
issue date to the maturity date with 5 business i AN fE B 2 E oA A AP
days prior notice. 5 (& %872 41,000,000/

T HETEER)

(iv)  The issuer of convertible note D may redeem the (iv) AR EEDEIT AR
total amount at par at any time before maturity BIEARRIRERE L&D
by serving at least seven days prior written HzEAEEMM K@
notice. BEDNZ2HEEE-
16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RMIB AR 2=
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—FF
HK$000 HK$'000
FiEx FA&TT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRG  TAA - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI 2,296,287 1,856,907
2,296,287 1,856,907
Less: Provision for amounts due from J& ¢ TE B B 1 A) 7k I8 B
subsidiaries (1,414,487) (1,038,176)
881,800 818,731
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non- U EMKEBRARREAEERFL S
interest bearing and the settlement of which is neither B WA S I T RAERT R KRB
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future. &
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY R

16.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2011 were as follows:

RSB AR 2 Es® (&)
AAREEHBAF

R-ZE——F+=

A=+—RZ#FBWT:

Issued and
Place of fully paid Percentage of
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BERITRARE
WELAREE HBAYL EEhY BE/ZMEER RAAFMBEREIEZEIL FEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# &
Allied Loyal International British Virgin Islands Us$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited
ARERES 50,000% 7T REZKR
Equity Base Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
ARERES 1%7T REZKR
Forefront Automotive Services Hong Kong HK$20 - 100% Trading of motor vehicle
Company Limited accessories
BAARERBERAR Bk 20T AEZENES
Forefront Finance Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 - 100% Money-lending
BHHBERAF 36 2,000,000 7T &
Forefront International Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100% Provision of
(Hong Kong) Limited Ordinary share management services
HK$6,000,000 for the Group
Non-voting
deferred shares (i)
&5 (BR)ERAF 36 100,000 7T AEEEREEERYE
6,000,0007% 7
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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16. RMYB AR 2 (&)

Issued and
Place of fully paid Percentage of
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BERITRARE
WELAREHE HBAYL EE Y BA/EMERX ARAFBREABZEIL ZBEE
Directly Indirectly
H# &
Loyal Fine Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - Investment holding
ARERES (E REZKR
Regent Square Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
ARERES (E REZKR
Richful Zone International Limited British Virgin Islands US$17,478,973 - 100% Investment holding
LHBARERAT RBRRAHE 17,478,973% T REER
Sino Wealthy Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Trading of securities
ARERES (EVp EFHEE
Smart Oriental Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
ARERES (E REZKR
Note: i

(i) Holders of deferred shares have no rights to vote at general meetings or

receive any dividend. Upon winding up, they are entitled to one half of
the balance of the company’s assets after HK$100,000,000,000 has been
distributed to holders of ordinary shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any

time during the year ended 31 December 2011.

() BEERMDZFAEAERERREAE LRETH
EREWREMRS - EERK ZAREETF
100,000,000,0007% 7T 1% & e A 9k T & 18
BzBHEBEAN MBEZ —FRETERHZHE

AEH-

BB R A

REE-_ZE——%+=-A

=t —RUEFEAEAGELEEAD

BITBREER-
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17. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to

repayment schedules. The balance comprises loans receivable

17. ERER
ERARER 2 ERARBERFRKE
BE-BREREERETIE T 2EK

from: B3
2011 2010
—F——F —EFF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FEx FAET
Third parties F=F (a) 184,822 241,388
Allowance for bad and RIZIR B
doubtful debts (b) (20,676) (90,817)
Balances due within one year FFARBEE -R—FR
included in current assets R HY 2 sk (b) 164,146 150,571
Notes: B EE -

(a) At the end of the reporting period, (1) loans receivable carry effective

interest rate ranging from 5% to 6% per annum (2070: prime rate minus
2% to prime rate plus 2%); (2) loan balance of HK$1,421,000 (2070:
HK$1,447,000) was overdue and fully impaired; (3) the remaining loan
balances of HK$183,401,000 (20710: HK$239,941,000) are within the
respective maturity dates (2070: within maturity dates); (4) loan balances
of HK$183,401,000 are secured and the fair value of the pledged assets
is HK$46,782,000 (2010: loan balance of HK$162,151,000 are secured
and the fair value of the pledged assets is HK$50,838,000); and (5) loan
balance of HK$Nil (2070: HK$77,790,000) is unsecured.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A IR 2 A

(@ MEEHLRE - MWERERZERA X
NFTEREERE (ZF—FTF - RER
Fil £ j2/E 25 ERFIEN2E) ()8 R
1,421,000/ 0 (= F —F4F 1,447,000
BL) B ANTEZ2ERE: Q)BT
BSR4 #4183,401,0008 L (= F—FF:
239,941,000 L) B8 (= F— T4 :
FEE ) (4B R #2183,401,0008 T A B
BR BEREEZ R FERL6,782,000/%
T(ZF—FF B #ER162,151,000& T
REER BEFEET R FE7350,838,000
BL) ROEREHRTBL(ZFE—FF:
77,790,000;8 7T ) o EAE A -



Notes to the Financial Statements

17. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(b)

Bt %% R MY R

17. BWE K (&)

Notes: (Continued) MizE: (&)
The movement of allowance for bad and doubtful debts is analysed as (b) RBEBEEBOWTHOT :
follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Balance at beginning of year FAEH 90,817 1,471
Increase in allowance BN 19,255 89,370
Amount recovered B Y[l & 58 (89,396) (24)
Net (release) charge (BE)MAXF8E (70,141) 89,346
Balance at end of year FUREEH 20,676 90,817
The directors assessed the collectability of loans receivable at the end EERBEHERBLBERABEZERL

of the reporting period individually with reference to borrowers’ past
collection history and current creditworthiness. Based on the assessment
with reference to the collaterals secured by the borrowers and the
amount recovered from the borrowers up to the date of the authorisation
of these financial statements, the collectability of loans receivable
amounting to HK$20,676,000 (2070: HK$90,817,000) was in doubt
and provision amounting to HK$19,255,000 (2070. HK$89,370,000)
was made accordingly. In the directors’ opinion, there was no indication
of deterioration in the collectability of the remaining amount of
HK$164,146,000 (2070: HK$150,571,000) and thus no additional
allowance was considered necessary.

SRR 2= BIRE - ERIFT A A2 T W=
B RBELBEFABR2ERRRREE
MBREXZETZEAHEAERAKBDZ €
FEVEH 2 ATl - FEUE 3820,676,000/% 7T, (=
F—FF:90,817,000% ) 2 o] UL B 12 E BX,
5 - B A FERE#819,255,0008 T (= F
—Z 4 :89,370,000/8 ) - EER A EH
S ERIE $438164,146,0008 L (ZF—F
4 1 150,571,000 7T ) 77 T H 3R 6 R8-S 28
YERFEIME S ©
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17. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(c)  Loans receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of loan and interest receivables that neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

17. BRER (&)
© WEFEZEEER
A 5 0 ) 5 1B AR B B LA AR BB R
ez kRS mT

2011 2010

—ET——F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired I 4578 B SR B 164,146 150,571

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide

range of borrowers for whom there was no recent history of default.

These loans are repayable within 6 months.

18. OTHER RECEIVABLES

T 4 580 ) SORL B 2 8 WK RS RO B I 2
WSk B EZ ZERA  ZEE AR
B8 A NEE -

18. H fth fE W =R IH

The Group The Company
r5E YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
%% -F-% —g--F -%-%
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THEL TAL THEL TAL
Deposits, prepayments and Be BRFERAGEKER
other debtors 2,677 19,220 343 583
Dividend receivable from el —MEE A aRa
an associate - 1,200 - -
2,677 20,420 343 583
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

In September 2011, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest in a subsidiary, Crown Creation Limited, to an
independent third party, at a consideration of HK$100 million.
The net assets of Crown Creation Limited and its subsidiaries
disposed of during the year were as follows:

Bt %% R MY R

19. HE—HEAF

RZE——FNA AEER—EB
NE=ZSFHE —HHEB2RFCrown
Creation Limited® &z iz RER
100,000,000/ 7T ° 74 4F A i & 2 Crown
Creation Limited X EMff B AR 2 & EF
(RN

2011
—E——F
HK$'000
FET

Carrying amount of net assets disposed of EHEEEFAEZIREAERE:

comprise:

Available-for-sales financial assets A HEMBEE 77,793
Interest in associate KRB RNF 2w 4,546
Goodwill (R _
82,339
Gain on disposal & s 17,661
Cash consideration received BUWEIR S KRB 100,000

On 19 May 2010, the Company issued 400,000,000 ordinary
shares as consideration for the acquisition of Perfect Time
Investments Limited (“Perfect Time"”). Perfect Time holds
100% equity interest in Jet Star Industries Limited, which
holds a property in Guangzhou, PRC. The property is a
20-stores composite building known as Jifu Plaza. On 26
May 2010, the Group disposed of its entire interest in Perfect
Time to an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$85,000,000. A net gain on disposal of approximately
HK$25,000,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2010. Please refer to 2010 annual report for
details.

RZE—ZEFRA+NE ARAEEH
77400,000,000% &A% - 1E AU ISR £
BEBRRAF ([KE]) 2RE-KER
BREBEEBRATI00%MAEZ M
ZARFBEFTEEMN —EYE - ZWE
BB TEEEEFT BRAEEANE-
N-ZE-—FTFRA-+RB AEAMRA
—EBIUFE=ZFHEERRE 22 HE
% - R B 585,000,000 L - HE_ZT—
TE+ A=+ RALFECHRLE
B | 3% %8 4925,000,0005 7T o 515 5 2
BM_ZE—ZEFFR-
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20. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

21.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (the "MPF Scheme”) which is
a defined contribution scheme managed by independent
trustees. The assets of the fund are hold separately from those
of the group companies and are managed by independent
professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

Contributions of approximately HK$143,000 (2070:
HK$150,000) were made during the year ended 31 December
2011.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had no material forfeited
contribution available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefits scheme in future years (2070: Nil).

DEFERRED TAXATION

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in
respect of unused tax loss of HK$1,483,295,000 (2070:
HK$719,040,000) relating to certain Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries. The tax losses have no expiry date under current
tax legislation. The deferred tax asset has not been recognised
due to uncertainty of its recoverability.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A IR 2 A

20. R EHKEE

21.

AEBETETEZARC 2586 1%E
RTEDEE ([REEE]) - &8T5
BB REAEE 2 RERNKGE - % E
CZEERAKREERRZEED AR
B YHBYEXRESEEER -RER
Eeid AEE(BX) REEEAR
BERAIERBEEIZHTE £8EA
FEE R EF LSRN EERAS%
HX-BRREE 28 AMHKERS1,000
BT BHZHRAEEREE -

KEBREBEE-_ET——F+-A=+—
BIEFEEDZHIE A143,000%8 T
(—ZF—2F4F:150,000/%T)

W=F——E+=A=+—0 AKEL
f B K LR MR AT GO R 4R 2
RIGEFIEBIRER (- F—FF ) o

EEHIE
AEEVTESREBRAE TR EBTM
Rz BARAR 2 A ABIBEEIE
1,483,295,0008 L (= F —FF -
719,040,000/ 7T ) HEREIE TR TH & EE -
RIRERTTROE - T I8 B 18 30 /8 i ik B B o
IEFEF I8 & B B R gl 5T a] Y ml 1% ok
TR
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22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. R
2011 2010
o -2-3f
No. of shares No. of shares
g G| bt
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T i TET i TET
Authorised: EE:
At beginning of year R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ShREE0ET ERR 50,000,000 5,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000
Capital reorganisation (note a) BASA (Kzta) 450,000,000 = - -
At end of the year REL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEIETLZEBR
(2010 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 (ZE-ZF BRHE

each) 0.18T ZBR) 500,000,000 5,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR:
At beginning of year R

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEI0ETZ TER 4,060,825 406,082 439,384 43,938
Capital reorganisation (note a) BRASA (Hzta) (3,654,743) (402,022) - -
Issue of shares on rights issue IR BTG (FEtb)

(note b) 3,248,660 32,487 1,098,461 109,846
Issue of new shares B8R - - 2,040,938 204,099
Issue of shares under REBRESEETRN

share options scheme - - 43,939 4,394
Shares issued on conversion of BATRFTARERR

zero coupon convertible bonds Bk - - 324,484 32,448
Shares issued on conversion of ARBNERREIRN

optional bonds - - 113,569 11,357

At end of the reporting period REERERA

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEIBLZLRAR
(2010: ordinary shares of HK$0. 1 (ZE—FF:GRAE
each) 0.8 ZER) 3,654,742 36,547 4,060,825 406,082
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

(a)

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 10 January

2011, the resolutions in respect of the share consolidation, the capital

reduction and the capital subdivision of the Company (the “Capital

Reorganisation”) were approved by the shareholders. The effects of the

Capital Reorganisation were as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Under the share consolidation, every ten issued share of par value
of HK$0.1 each was consolidated into one adjusted issued share of
par value of HK$1.00 each.

Immediately following the share consolidation, the nominal value
of all the issued existing share will be reduced from par value
of HK$1.0 each to par value of HK$0.01 each by cancellation
of the paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.99 on each issued
consolidated share.

The credit arising from such capital reduction will be applied
towards canceling the accumulated deficit of the Company
with the balance to be transferred to the distributable capital
redemption reserve account of the Company.

Under the share subdivision, each of the authorised but unissued
share of par value of HK$0.10 each will be subdivided into ten
adjusted shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 10 January 2011, 3,248,660,184 rights shares on
the basis of 8 rights shares for every 1 adjusted share held at a price

of HK$0.125 per rights share were issued and allocated to successful

applicants on 28 April 2011.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A IR 2 A

22. RA& (&

GEE

(a)

RARREZFT-——F—-A+HETZER
FRIRE L RRIEZHEERARTRNE
B BARHEERGFE ([BRASBHE]) 2R
BR-BAEAZTENT

)y RBEBRGEH BT TRSKREEE
T2 B ETRN A G R RE{E.00/E
TEZREREEHETRMD -

(i) BREEROEHE FXHERDHTE
PERR 2 B IRZAR0.99 T A E
BITHRAERD ZEERSER.08TH
WEFRO.0ETT -

(i) BREREIRAES ZERBIRHEAR
Az 25t EM RBRBRERRRZ
AN IKEAREL FER -

(iv) REROIFA SREE10ETT. LA
EERBETRAEDFATREREE
0.01BTTZ &R -

RZE——FHAZ+N\B ARARER
—E-—F—-A+HARTZRENIKRE L
BRZEBRIRE RERFA—REAER
MR RS 2 B2 U R R ARG
0.125% 7T 2 BE M A T B 55 A 317 R B %
3,248,660,1848% { B AR 15
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23. SHARE OPTIONS

(a) Share option scheme

A share option scheme was approved by shareholders on
6 August 2007 which will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on 6 August 2007.

Under the new share option scheme, the Company may
grant to Directors and employees of the Group and any
other persons who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group. The
maximum of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the new share option scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time. The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the new share option scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue, the General Scheme
Limit, at the date of the passing of the relevant ordinary
resolution. If any options is to be granted to connected
person(s), it must be approved by independent non-
executive directors or independent shareholders as the
case may be.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted to a specifically identified
single grantee under the new share option scheme
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue.

Bt %% R MY R

23. B

(a)

BRREE

B EAER - HF )\ F5H
ERREIE BT +FNAN
B4 BHE104F -

RIFHMERESS XARART
EF AKEEEBMREFSE2RED
FRAERABEHAREIELE
B EMEMALERE - A1TE
IR B AT 8 R AR BT A
1l 8 BB AT B BB RTTE 2 256
BITHEINEREM BT 2D LR
EHTFBBTIREBITRO B
Z30% ° ATTEAR IR # B A E T &
R AR BUEAT A o B A M 1 81 9%
ZEEBRE AR T A] BT D AR EK
BATEBANBBHEM[ERRE
EEACEITHRMNZ10% (Eis
ZIRE) - BT REALEAERE
AR BIIFATESTHIBIMR
(RIGATE ) $LE

BMEAT -+ (7 BB 48 97 R A 4
SHEIA A BEE B R AR
2R (BIEEITE  DEMEF
MBI SR 2R RSB A
TRBBE BRI LB21% -
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23. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Under the new share option scheme, the options granted
may be accepted by a participant within 14 days from the
date of such offer. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option. Options
may be exercised at any time no later than 10 years
from the date of grant. The subscription price for shares
payable on exercise of share options granted under the
new share option scheme shall be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall in any event be not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of share.

Movement in share option scheme during the year
and in subsequent period:

No share option has been granted and exercised during
the year or outstanding at the end of reporting period.

On 31 January 2012, 365,474,270 share options
were granted under share option scheme to qualified
participants. The exercise price of the relevant share
options granted on 31 January 2012 was HK$0.1042
per share, which represents the highest of (i) the closing
price of HK$0.103 per share on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HK$0.1042 per share for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of HK$0.01 per share. The
options were fully exercised on 7 February 2012 and the
Company received proceeds of HK$38 million.

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED B 5 &£ B A IR 2 A

23. B E (&)

(a)

(b)

B E (F)
RIBF BT 8 R 2 B A
AH2EENRZHAREF14ER

BEMommELEBREZENREE
AT RE - BIRER HEEH
HARB104F A BB B 17 168 o AR IR T B AR
RERTEIE L 2 BREEI T EREN
ZERHOHREEREEET KEE
ABEATTEBERATI Z&S
OWRMABRLZENBBH(LEAR
SR)EBXAMEAMERMBL
WiE: (ROREEREENA
ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂflx%ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ%
FATER 2 AT E R GiDAR D E
(ER

FARRHEZHEERETE 22
B

MEmERENFANDRE RITEL
PR B R RITE -

RZE—ZF—A=+—H 4R
AIREERETESETEERSHE
H365,474 2700 ERE- KN =ZF
——F—AZ+—BERLZHEBE
IR 2T ERETRRHKN0.1042/8
TORDRIBHBBHZ KmE
FIR0.1038 T (NRMH PR BEER T
HEATAE=2A 2 FHKRMmES
f%0.10427%8 70 X (i)=& IR 1) E B
COVBT=%FhrmmE ZEH
KREER-ZFE——F_ALHEX
HATE - MARRE WERAERIE
38,000,000 7T °
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24. RESERVES 24. f#1&

The Company AT
Zero coupon Share Capital Capital
Share  convertible option  contributed Capital  redemption  Accumulated
premium bonds reserve surplus reserve reserve deficit Total
F5E -2 &%
ReEE TRREZ  BRERE HABH EXGE BERE 5 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET ThL TAL ThL TAL Thr TEL T
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-ZE-A-A
Beginning of year i) 805,044 23,230 - 16,692 4,492 1173 (615,917) 234714
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year ERNER - - - - - - (130,947) (130,947)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EFELE - - - - - - (130,947) (130,947)
Transactions with owners REBANETZRS
Issue of new shares, net of expenses BITHR (ENRET) 70,295 - - - - - - 70,295
Issue of shares on rights issues, HRERTRG (ENRESZ)
net of expenses 188,977 - - - - - - 188,977
Share options granted RHBRE - - 1 - - - - 1
Issue of shares under share option scheme 15 B i i 5t 8% 17 ik 7 9,667 - (1) - - - - 9,666
Shares issued on conversion of ERTARESEEIRN
convertible bonds, net of expenses (BNBHER) 76,528 (23,230) - - - - - 53,298
Issuance of optional bonds BUERLES - 10,472 - - - - - 10,472
Shares issued on conversion of EHREEERNEIRA
optional bonds 27,143 (10,472) - - - - - 16,671
Total transactions with owners FREERAETZRELE
for the year 372,610 (23,230) - - - - - 349,380
At 31 December 2010 and RZF-ZETZ/=+-HER
at 1 January 2011 “F-——%-f-8 1,177,654 - - 16,692 4,492 1173 (746,864) 453,147
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (377,386) (377,386)
Total comprehensive loss for the year Eh2EFEEE - - - - - - (377,386) (377,386)
Transactions with owners BEFAETZRS
Issue of shares on rights issues, HREETRG (ENREL)
net of expenses (note 22(b)) (FzE22(0)) 361,413 - - - - - - 361,413
Capital reorganisation (note 22(a)) RAZEE (MH20) - - - - - - 402,022 402,022
Total transactions with owners FREERAETZRELE
for the year 361,413 - - - - - 402,022 763,435
At 31 December 2011 R=F--F+ZA=t-H 1,539,067 - - 16,692 4,492 11713 (722,228) 839,196
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25. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 25. REMARSE

2011 2010

—g——% -—z-=%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Loss before taxation BREIRTEE (329,308) (229,463)
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEE ZFE - 38
Interest income FEMA (581) (114)
Share of results of associates FEAG B & A R FE4E (307) (1,393)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BIVEEZRERE = 12,258

Amortisation of liability component of gk ERFaEE D HH

convertible bonds - 1,286
Gain on disposal/Net gain on acquisition HE&—RMBARZ&F

and disposal of WEELE—BHBARZA

a subsidiary A RE (17,661) (25,000)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses — #7T2 & # §551 52 1,761 2,109
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREZH2EE

plant and equipment - 2
Write back of other payable & o] H b FE < FRIB (23,910) -
Recognition of bargain purchase AU S — KT B A RS ERIE R

on acquisition of a subsidiary BE - (3,262)
Net release (charge) on provision RIFRBERE () FHE

for bad and doubtful debts (70,141) 89,346
Changes in working capital: LEEe EY:

Financial assets at fair value through REERIZ AV ERIE 2 HH

profit or loss BiE 5,986 (177,405)

Other receivables H A fE W5k I8 17,743 (5,626)

Other payables H fb e FOE (2,508) 1,181

Loans receivable EWE = 56,567 (179,835)
Cash used in operations REMARE (362,359) (515,878)
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26. MARGIN FACILITIES

27.

As at 31 December 2011, margin facilities of
HK$199,683,000 (2070. HK$195,757,000) from regulated
securities brokers were granted to the Group under which
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$445,338,000 (2010: HK$451,324,000) were treated as
collateral for the facilities granted. The Group has not utilised
any of these facilities as at 31 December 2011 (2070: HK$Nil).

COMMITMENTS
Commitments under operating leases

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases, which typically run for an initial period of 1-3 years.
None of these leases includes contingent rentals. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had future lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which are payable as
follows:

Bt %% R MY &

26. FEME

27.

W-_Z—-——&+_-_A=+—H0 K
EEEIHEZTSFLLBLFTRA
%199,683,0008 L (= F —FF -
195,757,000/ ) - # it - 1B m IR 1%
NTERIE 2 %E FEA45,338,000/8 7T
( = FE—F4F 451,324,000, 7T ) i85
ERpEZEHAR R_T—F+=
A=+—H AEBTEHHIMZE
BME(=ZFE—FF:-F¥Er)-

S

REHEEARE
AEBU-—RVT BB -—E=F2EZ
HEHERZENE -ARABEETL T B
HAREE -RNBEMERD  AEERT
A EHE 2 R E N BRI
THEHXN:

2011 2010

—E——F —E—FF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THER FHEIT

Within one year —FR 861 1,033
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF (BREEEMF) 149 91
1,010 1,124
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28.

29.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
during the year the Group had the following significant
related party transactions:

28.

FEEALXRS
BB Rk EMEBOFREE I ARE
RERNETZERBEALRZET:

Remunerations of key management personnel: FTEEBABZHE:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT T T
Employee benefits expenses EBERANMAX 2,013 1,987
Contributions to defined contribution RERKETEIHERK
schemes 36 36
2,049 2,023
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. KRB ER

The Group’s principal financial instruments are available-for-
sales financial assets, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans receivable, bank balances and cash. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise and
maintain finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial instruments such as other receivables
and other payables, which arise directly from its business
activities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are equity price risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors generally
adopts conservative strategies on its risk management and
limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The
Group also monitors the market price risk arising from all
financial instruments.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 29. I EBRER (£Z)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading
of listed securities and unlisted convertible notes included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market
prices had been 5% higher or lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s net loss would decrease
or increase by HK$22,267,000 (2070: HK$19,650,000) as a
result of changes in fair value of investments. The Group’s
sensitivity to equity price has not changed significantly from
the prior year.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the reasonably possible changes in the stock market index or
other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed
that the fair values of the Group's investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index or the relevant risk variables, that none
of the Group's securities investments would be considered
impaired as a result of a reasonably possible decrease in the
relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables,
and that all other variables remain constant. The stated
changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variables over the period until the next annual
end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2010.

IR 18 /R B

AEEZEERREE EMESFEER
AARBSEIREATEREZHBEE
ZIEEMABRRE - AR DR
BERERREE -

RMEPLERB  METBRELFANXT
B5%  TEFTAEHMEHTE 2BERT
AEBzEEFESARTREATEE
B R sk 1 1n22,267,0008 T ( = F
—FF 119,650,000 T ) ° A £ HH I
BrHREERTFUBABEEE -

BRESDTHREREMISIEE K E M
*Hﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ/\#ﬁiﬁﬂ ERALHEE

AEEEFHmMET WEANE A ZKRE
HER°5U@Z\J; ST IMBE R AEERE Z
"?Tﬁ@fﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁ—?rh%?a%(ﬁdﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁﬂ
DEORLTERMEY AEE 2F
KESGRBEKRET S ESE MR
MRS 5B f Tﬂﬁﬁ?&?ﬁf’ﬁﬁ
B ARMEEMEHTE . Lt ZEiE
IR H AR R m%h%ﬁifﬁfﬁﬂ&
BERTFEMSHAERAARE A
BAIGE BB o DT EER T
—ZFEA-
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposures to interest rate risk as its loans
receivable are subject to floating interest rates. However,
cash flow interest rate risk is considered minimal as the loans
receivable have short maturity dates.

The interest rate risk for bank balance exposed is considered
minimal as such amounts are placed in banks with maturing
less than three months.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is not subject to foreign currency risk exposure
since its operations are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk for all recognised financial
assets that a counterparty in a transaction may default on
settlement. The maximum exposure equals to the carrying
amount of these financial assets.

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group, resulting
in a loss to the Group. The Group has adopted procedures in
extending credit terms to loan borrowers and in monitoring its
credit risk. The credit policy on extending credit terms to loan
borrowers includes assessing and valuing of loan borrowers’
creditworthiness and financial standing. Management also
closely monitors all outstanding debts and reviews the
collectability of other receivables periodically. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group has a concentration of credit
risk as 12% (2010: 32%) and 56% (2010: 66%) of the total
loans receivable was due from the Group’s largest borrower
and the five largest borrowers respectively.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 29. K EBRER (£Z)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited
in financial institutions and brokers, which are leading and
reputable firms and are assessed as having low credit risk.
The Group has not had any significant loss arising from non-
performance by these parties in the past and management
does not expect so in the future.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Group is unable
to meet its short-terms obligations. Liquidity risk is minimal
and is managed by matching the payments and receipts
cycles. The Group's operations are financed mainly through its
business activities.

All the financial liabilities of the Group and the Company at
the end of the reporting period are repayable on demand.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividend to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010.

FERR (&)
AEEREBEBMELZFREHZ
EERRBER REARZFREE R
REAERABHUNER B ERE
EERR -AEEEEYERNABAAL
TETEEMEEZEREER MEE
BERMARTIEHAZEEN -

REBETER

nBETRBEASEENETERES
BEfzRER -RBERBRMITIRE
TEBEAERRWBEBRMAERE-
AEEZEETERBRMELRDREME

2N
i e

RBERERA  AEERAKRRR]ZH
BV HAESREREER-

EXER
AEEEREAZBENRREZEEE
SERE WARRGEROR AEEE
BHEARBYFLHAR BREAKR
TR BB R RR B B AR BT
FHEEENRIBER - BE-T——
FRZZF—ZTF+-A=+—HILFE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted capital.
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the end of the reporting

29. U REBER (&)

EXERE (&)

AREBERBES REHERANL X (JA

148
1875 % BR Bk LAAE 8

BAGE)ERE

Ro-RMEPERD 2 BEHRLERHBER

period were as follow: REEMAT:
2011 2010
—B-——-F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Other payables Hh f& N 5B 3,403 29,820
Less: Bank balances and cash JiIRITEF MRS (138,183) (131,342)
Net debt (ERr e (134,780) (101,522)
Total equity f& #E 42 (E 954,837 890,245
Debt-to-equity capital ratio BB AR AN b X N/ATiE A N/AT 3 A
Fair value AFE
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially FrEBITREEEEN T ——F R

different from their fair values as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as held for trading) is based on quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The carrying value of loans and other receivables and other
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2011
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments;

e Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable market data;

° Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data.

Bt %% R MY R

29. U REBER (&)

AFERE
TREFIEATFEEHEZHHETARS
T——F+-A=+—B2IREE
PR A R E TS (M TA
HEEE] AT ARIATESA
HAHE BhEBEMBIAZ ATET
BHAMATEHEAEAYEY RIE
WARRISEBEATESE - ABRI
AEmT:

. BB (RERH) EAERTSH
FIBAE S TR (REBE)
SHEZAFE:

o AR EREETSPEUMBE
TAZHE AMBEERBAEE
HEEXERERABENSEE
ZETEFEZ AFE:

o AH=(HERR) - ERERBA
HEHWFERABRMIZHEZ
EEREFEZAFE.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 2. I AKBER (£)
Fair value disclosures (Continued) AFEFRE (&)
Assets measured at fair value R FEGTEZEE

31 December

2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—B--F
+=A=t+-H ®Al— WA= &A=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Financial assets at fair value REBRRRATERE
through profit or loss BHBEE
- Equity securities -BAES 402,884 402,884 - -
— Unlisted convertible notes ~EEMAURRER 42,454 - 42,454 -
445,338 402,884 42,454 -
31 December
2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—ZE-ZF
+-ZA=1+—H &RI— 3] &R=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL FTEL FTEL FTEL
Financial assets at fair value REGREATFEREZ
through profit or loss MBEE
- Equity securities — AR % 393,003 393,003 - -
— Unlisted convertible notes — LW EREER 58,321 - 58,321 -
451,324 393,003 58,321 -
During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, there REBEE_T——FR_T-FF+_H
was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value =t HIEFE YERRFEEFTER
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair Bl —RGR 2 Mg TEE EEE
value measurements. LEgAFENFERF =288 -
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has evaluated the
performance of operating segments and to allocate resources
to those segments based on the Group's internal reporting in
respect of these segments. The executive directors consider
investing and provision of financing services are the Group’s
major operating segments in which the investing segment
consists of securities trading and other investing activities.
Segment results represent the result from each segment
without allocation of finance costs and share of results of
associates. The following analysis is the measure reported to
executive directors, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

By Business segments

An analysis of the Group’s result by operating segments is set

B %% R MY R

30. 7 EEESR

TEEERRACRBAREREED
BzREBE FEZF0BZRAN
LM ERAEEEN B -NITEERR
BRENMEEBERTASAEEZIEER
BN ER RENEEEREFEER
HMBREEZS DBREEESDBRZE
BoEPRYARDERBERA NG
REFE - UTHTAABITES (B1X
REERBAERRE 2705 A
TERDEMFEDERE -

BEXTE
AREBXBEREEDEITWT

out below:
Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-E-—-5+-A=+t—-HLEE
Investing  Financing Unallocated Total
RE ME RRIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THERT TERT
Turnover ]

Net realised loss on disposal of financial ~ HEREBRIEZATFEREZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss B BEEZEEHBEFE

Dividend income BREMA

Interest income from provision of RESBRBE 2FEWA
financial services

Total turnover BRER
Operating results BexE
Segment results ECES
Share of result of associates eI

HE-—RHBRRAZRH

Gain on disposal a subsidiary

BAARBAREER

Loss attributable to owners of
the parent

(97,884) = = (97,884)
5,515 = = 5,515

= 11,517 = 11,517
(92,369) 11,517 = (80,852)

(437,125) 67,792 22,057 (347,276)

307
17,661

(329,308)

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 =& — — £ £3#% 101



Notes to the Financial Statements

T L

30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 30. 2 EER (&)
By Business segments (Continued) BREBDE(E)
An analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating AEEEERABBEREEDELSNN
segments is set out below: I

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z-——-§4+-A=+-HLEE

Investing  Financing Unallocated Total
K& BE AEIE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET FET FET

Assets BE 620,930 235,873 69,189 925,992
- Interest in associates —REE AT RS 32,248
958,240
Liabilities =R 38 - 3,365 3,403
Other information Hige
Additions to non-current assets RNEERDEE 108,000 - - 108,000
Depreciation and other non-cash FEREMIERETH
expenditures 348,140 19,255 353 367,748
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30. D EEER (E)
REBHE(E)
AEBEBERCLEIEIFTWT :

30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
By Business segments (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s result by operating segments is set

out below:
Year ended 31 December 2010
HE-Z-Z5T-A=T—HLHFE
Investing Financing  Unallocated Total
BE BE  RESE @Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FET THET
Turnover EEE
Net realised loss on disposal of financial ~ HERBHIERATFERE
assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ HIEEEZEEREBFE (30,913) - - (30,913)

Dividend income & B A 2,446 - - 2,446

Interest income from provision of
financial services

Total turnover

Operating results
Segment results

Share of result of associates
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Loss attributable to owners of
the parent

RESBREFEBA

BEXE

ReXE

K e g
G ES

BUEBERRAZXE
HEETEEZER

BARAREAREER

- 6,764 - 6,764
(28,467) 6,764 - (21,703)
(132,987) (83,080) (14,787)  (230,854)
1,393

(2)

(229,463)
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 30. 2 EER (&)
By Business segments (Continued) BREBDE(E)
An analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating AEEEERABBEREEDELSNN
segments is set out below: I

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F-TET-A=T-AL%E

Investing Financing  Unallocated Total
RE BE AEDE @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TATL TAT TAT

Assets BE 597,257 150,731 135,590 883,578
- Interest in associates -REBERE ER 36,487
920,065

Liabilities e - - 29,820 29,820
Other information Hitge
Additions to non-current assets REEFHEE 143,012 - 74 143,086
Depreciation and other non-cash FEREMIERETH

expenditures 130,051 89,371 867 220,289
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and RERDBRARRED ARSI EER
allocating resources between segments, all assets are mE - MAAESESEEAHRENR
allocated to reportable segments other than interest in HEREE & R A) 2 Mz bR b -
associates.
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
By Geographical segments

The following is analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets other than available-for-sale financial assets,

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% R MY R

30. o EER (£)

B E D H

analysed by the geographical areas in which the assets are

located:

MTIRIERBDEE (AIHLEMNBKEE
BRON) I AR R 8 D 2 IRE(E 2 7 -

31 December 2011
—F——%+=RA=+-H

Other regions

Hong Kong in the PRC Total

&8 HEHHEMGHE st

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FB T FH T

Non-current assets ERBE E 32,304 67,592 99,896

31 December 2010
—2-FF+-A=t-A

Other regions

Hong Kong in the PRC Total

B HEHHEMBE 4t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TAET FATT

Non-current assets IERBE E 33,421 72,475 105,896

About 100% of revenue of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2011 and 2010 are derived in Hong Kong, the
place of domicile of the Group's operating entities.

Bh) o

REFREEZE-_T—FR T —ZF
T A=+t HULEFEZEHFIUAY
FREEE (AEBRKEEE 2t
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31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 31. REHEREE
Other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, R 1 55 B 7% i 2k L fth 2B o9 BT #E BB 25 ) -
a summary of events transacted after the end of reporting WEMERBEET 2 EERMNOT

period is set out below:

On 20 January 2012, the Group entered into a note purchase MRZE-——F—HAZ+H AEEH—
agreement with an independent third party company to MBYFEF =R L REBE R
acquire 2.5% unsecured bonds due 2014 (the “Acquisition”) LAMHE 5 — BB =7 A RIFTBITAR
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$300 million issued & #8%85300,000,000/8 L2 —E— P04
by another independent third party company at a total FERsEEEKBES ([WE=EE]) -
consideration of HK$265,000,000, which will be satisfied by #8 {8 /265,000,000 70 BIAR & 5
cash. The Acquisition was approved by the shareholders at the N WBEEER _T——F=HA_H
extraordinary meeting on 2 March 2012. ZBRREFRIRE LR BAE -
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The following is a summary of the published consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position of Forefront Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) for the past five years.

Financial Summary

BB B =

ATREDTEBAERAR ([ARE]) REW
Bom (5 [ A%E ) BERF2CTIES
BEEWRABRRMEEMBRREHME-

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME %ééﬁq&lﬁﬁ
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E2—-F Z—Z£-TF ZTThF ZTEN\F CTLLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT FET TET FET
Turnover EEE (80,852) (21,703) 46,518 (71,564) (51,774)
Other income H AU A 46,434 29,239 513 15,567 18,518
Net release (charge) on RERE
provision for bad and ()%
doubtful debts 70,141 (89,346) 42,769 (44,240) -
Distribution and selling DEREERXT
expenses - - - - (331)
General and administrative —RETERAX
expenses (18,606) (18,913) (19,637) (25,947) (128,386)
Changes in fair value of REREEATE
financial assets at fair value ~ BEVHBEEZ
through profit or loss ATEEE (346,732) (116,551) 26,839 (142,310) (139,420)
Finance costs REKAK - (1,324) (992) (1,630) (24,250)
Share of result of associates ~ JE{ & A &)
EY 307 1,393 2,676 4,464 1,860
Impairment loss on interest in = R — R AR 2
an associate Bz REEE - - (158,500) - -
Impairment loss on intangible & & E 2 W EF B
assets - (12,258) - - -
Loss before taxation B 15 Bl B 1B (329,308) (229,463) (59,814) (265,660) (323,783)
Taxation FiI8 - - - - -
Loss from continuing REFELEEB L
operations &1 (329,308) (229,463) (59,814) (265,660) (323,783)
Loss from discontinued REKIEEEEH 2
operations E1a = - (1,798) (8,642) (9,404)
Total comprehensive loss (EYNSE PN 2
attributable to the owners FEBEEE
of the parent (329,308) (229,463) (61,612) (274,302) (333,187)
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Financial Summary

BB B E

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FREMBMRRE
POSITION
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E—-F% —Z£-%F ZZTENF ZTENF CTETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE 207,896 166,408 38,298 39,534 72,006
Current assets MEEE 750,344 753,657 483,163 230,821 434,155
Current liabilities mEAE (3,403) (29,820) (28,603) (45,080) (259,277)
Net current assets RENBEFE 746,941 723,837 454,560 185,741 174,878
Total assets less current BELERRDAR
liabilities 954,837 890,245 492,858 225,275 246,884
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - - 84,461 - -
Net assets BEZE 954,837 890,245 408,397 225,275 246,884
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